ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: 4771, Bharat Ram Road, 23, Darya Ganj, New Delhi -110002
CIN: U29300D1L2002PTC425099
Email id: rkc@elinindia.com, Phone no: 91-11- 23289340, Website- www.elinindia.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 22nd Annual General Meeting of the members of
ELIN APPLIANCES PVT. LTD. will be held on Monday, 30t September, 2024 at
10:00 A.M. at Registered Office of the Company at 4771, Bharat Ram Road, 23, Darya
Ganj, New Delhi -110002 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 together with the reports of the Board
of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Vinay Kumar Sethia (DIN:00082184),
who retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

On Behalf of the Board
For ELIN APPLIANCES PVT. LTD.

Place: New Delhi (VINAY KUMAR SETHIA)
Date: 06t August, 2024 Director
DIN: 00082184

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and such proxy need not be a
member of the company. Proxies in order to be effective must be deposited
at the registered office of the company not less than forty-eight hours before
the time fixed for the meeting.

2. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital
of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for
any other person or shareholder.

3. Corporate Members are requested to send a board resolution duly certified,
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the
Annual General Meeting.

4. An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of special businesses is not annexed hereto as there is no
special business. ,

5. The relevant records and documents connected with the businesses set out in
the Notice are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the




N

10.

11.

12.

13.

Company and at AGM venue between 10.00 AM and 1.00 PM on all working
days up to the day of the Annual General Meeting.

Details of the Director proposed to be appointed/reappointed as required in
terms of Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (“Secretarial Standards -
2”) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is provided at the
end as an Annexure, and forms an integral part of this Notice.

Members, are requested to bring their Folio No for identification.

Members desiring to seek any information on the Annual Accounts are
requested to write to the Company so that the query reaches to the Company
at least one week in advance of the Annual General Meeting.

The ‘Register of Directors' and ‘Key Managerial Personnel’/ and their
shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘'Act'),
the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are
interested under Section 189 of the Act will also be available for inspection at
the meeting.

A member can inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business
hours of the Company from the period beginning 24 hours before the time
fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of
the meeting, provided he/she has given to the Company a notice in writing of
his intention to inspect not less than 3 (three) days before the commencement
of the meeting.

Members are requested to bring their attendance slip at venue of the meeting.
Quote their Folio No. and Email address in all correspondence with the
Company.

Note that members present in person or through registered proxy shall only
be entertained. Note that the attendance slip/ proxy form should be signed as
per the specimen signature registered with the Company.

No gifts, gift coupons, or cash in lieu of gifts shall be distributed at the
Meeting.




Annexure

Name of Director VINAY KUMAR SETHIA
Category of Directorship WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR
DIN 00082184

Date of Birth 21-05-1951

Age 73 Years

Date of Appointment on the 29/09/2021

Board

Qualification & Experience

Bachelor’s degree in commerce from University
of Calcutta and has approximately 51 years of
experience in electronic manufacturing services
sector

No. of other Directorships

Mavika Estate Creators Pvt Ltd

Chairman / Member of the NIL
Committees of the Board of Other
Companies

No. of Equity Shares held in the NIL
Company

Number of Board Meetings 6/6

attended during the year

Terms and conditions of
appointment / re-appointment

Director liable to retire by rotation

Remuneration sought to be paid
and the remuneration Last drawn

Rs. 8,00,000/ - per month with perquisites and the
remuneration last drawn is Rs. 8,00,000/- per
month

Relationship with Other Directors,
Manager and Key Managerial
Personnel

Not related to any Director, Manager or Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Justification for choosing the
Independent Director

Not Applicable
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BOARD’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS

Yours Directors present the 22°¢ Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts
of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2024.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Figures in INR
Millions*)
2023-24 2022-23
Revenue from operations 2393.77 2504.29
Profit before Depreciation, Finance Costs and Tax 53.94 106.05
Less: Financial Costs 3.85 2.53
Less: Depreciation 31.99 21.6
Profit before taxation 18.10 81.92
Taxation - Current Tax (1.91) (19.02)
- Deferred Tax (1.65) (4.69)
- MAT Credit entitlement
0 0
for the year
-Tax related to Earlier Year 0 0
Profit after Tax 14.54 58.21
Profit brought forward 714.10 655.89
Transfer to Reserve 0 0
Profit carried to balance sheet 728.64 714.10
EPS (Basic and diluted)
(amount in INR) #A s

*Figures as per (Ind AS)

DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend dividend to conserve resources for future
expansion.

PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

During the year under review, the revenue from operations decreased by 4.41% to
Rs. 2393.77 Millions as against Rs. 2504.29 Millions in the previous year. The net
profit after tax decreased by 75.02% to Rs. 14.54 Millions as against Rs. 58.21 Millions
in the previous year.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
There is no change in the nature of business during the financial year 2023-24.




MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND
THE DATE OF THE REPORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Board has assessed the risk that the organization faces such as Strategic, Financial,
Credit, Market, Liquidity, Security, IT, Legal and other risks and there is an adequate
Risk Management infrastructure in place to address those risks.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no material
weakness in the design or operation was observed.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

All related party contracts/arrangements/transactions that were entered into
during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the
ordinary course of business.

The disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is attached as an

Annexure-I.

HOLDING COMPANY

“Elin Electronics Ltd.” is the holding company, holding 100% of the share capital of
the company. The company being a subsidiary of “Elin Electronics Ltd.”, the public
listed company, is a “deemed public company’ pursuant to provisions of section
2(71) of the Companies Act 2013.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate and Joint venture as defined
under the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
Details of loans, guarantees or investments given and covered under Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are given in notes to the financial statements.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year.

DIRECTORS

Members may note that pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013
applicable to Public Companies Shri Vinay Kumar Sethia (DIN:00082184), Director
of the Company will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-
appointment for approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The brief profile, pursuant to Secretarial Standards-2, of the Director eligible for
appointment/ re-appointment forms part of the Notice of Annual General Meeting.




The Company has received declaration from the Independent Director that he meet
the criteria of Independence laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).
The Independent Director has also confirmed that he has registered himself in the
databank of persons offering to become Independent Directors. The Independent
Director of the Company has been appointed as per the provisions of the Act.

DIRECTOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The directors hereby confirm:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed and there have been no material departures
from the same;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of
the financial year and of the profit of the company for that period;

c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
and

e) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Pursuant to Section 135(9) of Companies Act, 2013, [inserted by the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 vide Notification dated 28th
September, 2020], made effective from 22nd January 2021, where the
amount to be spent by a company for CSR in a financial year does not
exceed fifty lakh rupees, the requirement for constitution of the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee shall not be applicable and the functions
of such Committee provided under section 135 shall, in such cases, be
discharged by the Board of Directors of such company. The amount
which was required to be spent by the company on CSR in a financial
year 2023-24 as per section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, was less
than fifty lakh rupees. Hence, in view of said amendment, the company is
not required to have CSR Committee and the Board of directors would
oversee the CSR activities of the company.

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) For Financial
Year 2023-24 is attached as an Annexure-II.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year Six meetings of the Board were held on 08t April, 2023, 13t
April, 2023, 30t May, 2023, 10t August, 2023, 8t November, 2023 and 13t
February, 2024.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts/
Tribunals during the financial year 2023-24 which would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.




PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of
Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, as applicable. The
Company has not received any complaint under the same.

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT

M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
301003E/ E300005), the Statutory Auditors of the Company had been appointed
as the Statutory Auditors for a first term of 4 consecutive years from the
conclusion of 21t Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 30t September, 2023
till conclusion of 25" AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2027 at such
remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be
determined in consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company.

The Auditors” Report read along with Notes to Accounts is self-explanatory and
therefore does not call for any further comments.

The Auditor’s Reports on the Financial Statements for the financial year ended
31st March, 2024 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark requiring any explanations/ comments by the Board of Directors.

No fraud has been reported by the Statutory Auditors under Section 143(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to compliance of Regulation 24A of the SEBI LODR Regulations,
Company’s unlisted material subsidiary also undergo Secretarial Audit. The
Company is the material subsidiary of ELIN ELECTRONICS LTD for the FY
2023-2024. Accordingly, the Secretarial Audit Reports of the Company in the
prescribed Form No. MR-3 is attached as Annexure - III forming part of this
Report. The Secretarial Audit Report of your Company does not contain any
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

No fraud has been reported by the Secretarial Auditors under Section 143 (12)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

ANNUAL RETURN
In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the annual return in the prescribed
format is available at www .elinindia.com.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors affirms that the Company has complied with the
applicable Secretarial Standards (‘SS’) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (SS51 and SS2), relating to Meetings of the Board and General
Meetings respectively, which have mandatory application during the year under
review.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EARNINGS & OUTGO

The information relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption,
foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as required pursuant to Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014 is given as under:




A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:-

The Company manufactures electric irons, toasters, juicer mixer, grinders and
other electronics items. The company has acquired new machinery of latest
technology resulting in considerable saving in power consumption. The capital
investment on energy conservation equipments during the year is Rs. 3.03
Crores.

B TECHNICAL ABSORPTION:-

Self-reliance in new product development, import substitution and cost
reduction attempts are made for sourcing of material and components for
cost effectiveness.

Imported Technology (imported during the last 3 years) - NIL
Expenditure incurred on Research & Development - NIL

C) FOREIGN EARNINGS & OUTGOS:-

(Rs. in Lacs)

2023-24 2022-23

Total Foreign Exchange Outgo (actual outflow) 4886.73 3,351.00
Total Foreign Exchange earned (actual inflow) Nil 160.44

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors thank the Company’s customers, vendors and bankers for their
continuous support. The Directors also thank the Government of India,
Governments of various states in India, Governments of various countries
and concerned Government departments and agencies for their co-operation.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep appreciation for the
services rendered by staff and workers of the company at all levels and for
dedication to their work and loyalty.

For and on behalf of the Board
For Elin Appliances Pvt. Ltd.

\/W\ L yAGA_ KJ‘“W\' —

Date: 30.05.2024 H thorised Signatory
Place: New Delhi )

Vinay Kumar Sethia

Whole-time Director & Chairman

DIN: 00082184
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ANNEXURE I

including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: - NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arran

ement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name of | Nature of
Related  party | contract/
and Nature of | transactions
Relationship -
Elin Electronics | -Purchase of
Ltd. Motors,  Plastic
(Holding Molded
izllrclifi)l ?:c;}i-o % items/sheet metal
shares) Parts/DTM &
components
- Purchase/Sale of

Fixed Assets

-Payment for Job
work services

-Receiving of
Dividend

-Sale of
Components
/Plastic Dana &
Spare Parts

-Job work
sales/receipts

- Rent receipt

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.05.2024

©

Duration of | Salient terms | Approval
Contract/ of  contract/ | by the
transactions | transactions Board/

L shareholder
On-going Regular 30t May,
transactions | commercial 2023
/ contract transactions/

rent contract

Amount
paid as
advance,
if any

Nil

For and on behalf of the Board
For Elin Applia11ces .PV

Gaurav Sethia
Whole-time Director
DIN: 02902047

ks Mt Vorwy Fooenn 1

t. Ltd,

Vo

Vinay Kumar Sethia
Whole-time Director

DIN: 00082184




ANNEXURE II

ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Office: 4771, Bharat Ram Road, 23, Darya Ganj, New Delhi -110002

CIN: U29300DL2002PTC425099

Email id: rke@elinindia.com, Phone no: +91 011 43000427, Website- www .elinindia.com

S

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(CSR) FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The CSR policy focuses on addressing critical, social, environmental, and economic
needs of the under privileged section of the Society of India. Company will also
undertake other need-based initiatives in compliance with Schedule VII of the Act.

Composition of CSR Committee: Not applicable for FY 2023-24

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: -
www.elinindia.com

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable (attach the report).: Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any

SI. No. Financial Amount available for set- [ Amount required to be set- off
Year off from preceding | for the financial year, if any (in
financial years (in Rs) Rs)
Nil

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 8,49,96,719

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section
135(5): Rs. 16,99,934

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years: Nil

(¢) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c): Rs. 16,99,934

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
g(jéall fAmOItl;: I Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified
pell - aar €| Unspent CSR Account as per under Schedule VII as per second proviso to
Financial Year. section 135(6). section 135(5)
(in Rs.) Name of -
Amount. Date of the Amount. | Date of
transfer. Fund transfer




reerrenenenes 12CS

Nil

Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

@) @ 16 |@ ©) (6) (7)__{@®) ©) (10) (11)
21 Name of | Item Location of | Projec | Amo | Amou | Amou | Mod | Mode of
N the Project | from | Loc | the project. | t unt nt nt e of | Implementation -
o the |al durati | alloca | spent | transf | Impl | Through
list |are on ted in erred | eme Implement
of a for the | the to nta | ing Agency
activ | (Ye projec | curren | Unspe | tion
ities |s/ t (in t nt
in No Rs.). financ | CSR -
Sche |) ial Accou
dule Year | nt for
VII (in the
to Rs.). projec | Dir
the t as
Act. per ect
Sectio
n (Ye
135(6)
(in s/
Rs.).
No
)-
CSR
State| Distric Name | Registrati
t. on
number.
———————— NIL ------
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
™ 2 ®) §4 ) ®) (7 8)
SL | Name of the | Item from [Local| Location of the | Amoun [Mode Mode of
. Project the listof farea | project. tspent [of implementation -
activities  |(Yes/ for the [implem | Through
in No). project |entatio implementi
schedule (inRs.). n ng agency.
VII to the
Act. - CSR
State. | District Direct | Name. registrati
(Yes/No on
) number




Development  [Ensuring  |Yes [Himach [Nalagar
of Minature environmen al h, Distt. [Rs.9,57,5
Park at Handa |[tal Pradesh [Solan (60
Khundli, Baddi [sustainabilit
y, ecological
balance,
protection of]
flora and
fauna,
animal
welfare,
agroforestry,
conservation|
of natural
resources
and
maintaining
quality of
soil, air and
water

Yes

NA

NA

N

Development [Ensuring  [Yes [Himach [Nalagar [Rs.

of Cow centery fenvironmen al h, Distt. [5,72,114
at Handa tal Pradesh [Solan
Khundli, Baddi |sustainabilit
y, ecological
balance,
protection of
flora and
fauna,
animal
welfare,
agroforestry,
conservation
of natural
resources
and
maintaining
quality of
soil, air and
water

Yes

NA

NA

Satveer On Yes [Himach [Nalagar [Rs.
Hanuman promoting al h, Distt. [2,30,110
Akhara National & Pradesh [Solan
Rural Sports

Yes

NA

NA

TOTAL Rs.
17,59,774

(d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NI
(¢)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA

(f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 17.60Lacs

(8)  Excess amount for set off, if any




SL Particular Amount (in Rs.)

No.
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company Rs. 16,99,934
as per
section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 17,59,774
(iif) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs. 59,840

(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or ==
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial|  Rs. 59,840
ears

(iii)-(iv)]

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

S| Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund | Amount
No.| Financial transferred | spentin the | specified under Schedule VII as per | remaining
Year. to Unspent | reporting section 135(6), if any. to be spent
CSR Financial Na in
Account Year (in me Amount (in | Date of succeeding
under RS.). of Rs)_ transfer. financial
section 135 the years. (in
(6) (l]’\ RS) Fun RS)
d
NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial

year(s):
M @ 16 ) ©) (6) 7) ® | o
1%1- Project | Name [ Financial Project | Total Amount Cumulative | Status of
o 1D. of the | Year in | duration| amount | spenton amount the project
Project.| which  the| . allocated | the project | spent at the -
project was for the in the end of
commenced. project reporting | reporting Completed
(inRs.). | Financial Financial /Ongoing,
Year (in Year. (in Rs.)
Rs).

---—-----Not Applicable------

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year

(asset-wise details). - Not Applicable
a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

¢) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc.

d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address
and location of the capital asset).




11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per section 135(5). Not Applicable

EarElin Annlian
For Elin Appliances |

Ving Lo L et Tha

Authorised Signatory

VINAY KUMAR SETHIA GAURAV SETHIA
(Whole-Time Director) (Whole-Time Director)




AKSHAT GARG & ASSOCIATES

Secretarial, Legal & Corporate Advisory Services
Peer Reviewed Firm

Office No. 365, 3rd Floor, Rishabh Cloud9 Towers, Sector 1, Vaishali, Ghaziabad, U.P. - 201010 ACS
Email ID: acs@acsadvisors.in; Phone: 0120-4573083; +91-9350546594 Advi
UDYAM Registration No.: UDYAM-UP-29-0050415 visors

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Elin Appliances Private Limited

CIN: U29300DL2002PTC425099
4771, Bharat Ram Road, 23, Daryaganj,
New Delhi- 110002

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Elin Appliances Private Limited
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on March 315t, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-



mailto:acs@acsadvisors.in

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

(vi) Other laws as may be applicable to the company,
I have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following:

Secretarial Standards with regard to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General
Meetings (SS- 2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were following changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors of the company during the year 2023-24:

(@ Mr. Vinay Kumar Sethia (DIN:00082184), Whole Time Director of the Company, liable
to retire by rotation designated as Chairman with effect from 30™" May, 2023.

(b) The changes in the composition of board of directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and based on the information given by the
company, I report there were no instances of any dissenting members’ views being
captured or recorded as part of the minutes.




The Company having by special resolution passed at AGM held on 30™" August, 2022
altered the provisions of its Memorandum of Association with respect to the place of
the Registered Office by changing it from the state of Himachal Pradesh to the Delhi
outside the jurisdiction of existing RoC Himachal Pradesh to the ROC Delhi and such
alteration having been confirmed by an order of Regional Director bearing the date
31/10/2023. The Board approved the new address of the Registered Office w.e.f. 1
December, 2023 as under:

4771, Bharat Ram Road, 23, Daryaganj, New Delhi- 110002

M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number:
016520N), vide its resignation letter dated 9" August, 2023 have resigned from the
position of Statutory Auditors, effect from closing of business hours of the Board
meeting held on August 10, 2023.

In the Annual General Meeting held on 30" September, 2023, M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co.
LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005), appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused with effect from
10" August, 2023 (from the conclusion of Board Meeting) and to hold office till
conclusion of 215t Annual General Meeting held for FY ended March 31, 2023, by the
resignation of M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration
Number: 016520N) .

In the Annual General Meeting held on 30" September, 2023, M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co.
LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005), appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of four years, from the
conclusion of the 215t Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 25t Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2027.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Akshat Garg & Associates
(Company Secretaries)

Digitally signed by
AKSHAT AKSHAT GARG

Date: 30.05.2024 GARG vkt
Place: Ghaziabad (CS Akshat Garg)
Prop.
C. P. No. 10655
M. No. F9161

UDIN: FO09161F000497803
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOR'T

T the Members of Elin Appliances Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying fnancial statements of Elin Appliance Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the yvear then ended. and notes to the financial statements. including a summary
ol material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

I our opinien and to the best of our mformation and according to the explanations given to us. the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. of the state ol alfairs of the Company as ot March 31, 2024, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash Mows and the changes in equity Tor the vear ended
o that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the lnancial statements in aceordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs).
as specified under section 143010} of the Act. Owr responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the "Code of Ethics” issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountams of India together with the ethical regquirements that are relevant 1o
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions ol the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordunce with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a
hasis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Compumy™s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information meluded in the Board Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Nnancial statements. our responsibility is 1o read the other
inlormation and. in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the Fnancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this ather information, we are required to report that Fact. We have nothing o report in this regard,

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors 1s responsible for the matters stated in seetion 134(5) of the Act

with respeet 1o the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fuor view of the financinl

position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash Nows and changes m

¢{[|li'E_k?_|gj:___.i_’!'E‘ Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
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including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under seetion 133 of the Act read with

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. specified under section 153 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for saleguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and apphcation of appropriate accounting policies:
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prodent: and the design., implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
1o continae as a eoing concern, disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the
going concern hasis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or (o
cease operations, or has no realistic allernative but to do so.

Mose Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as o whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error, and to 1ss0e an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material il mdividually or in the
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit i accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

«  dentifv and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due
fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufTicient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion. The nisk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from crror.,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override
of internal control,

«  Obtain an understandmg of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the c¢ircumstances. Under section [43(3)i) of the Act. we are also
responsible [or expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
contrals with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effecuvencss of such
controls,

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= C'onclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the gomng concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether o material uncertainty exists related to events
ar conditions that may cast sigmficant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. [ we conclude that a material uncerainty exists, we are required to deaw attention in our
auditor’s repoit to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, 1F such disclosures are
inadeguate. to modity our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease Lo continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content ol the financial statements, including the
; r@fsflhg;req and whether the linancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
e
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in o mannmer that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the plamed
seope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any signilicant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence. and 1o communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and where applicable. related
siufeguards.

Other Matter
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023, included in these financial
statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmaodified opinion on those
statements on May 30, 2023,
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

|, Asreguired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub=section (11) of section 143 of the Act. we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified i paragraphs 3 and 4 ol the Order.

bed

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report. o the extent applicable. that:

(a) We have spught and obtained all the informmtion and explanations which to the hest of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ol our audit:

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except that (a) the backup of the books
of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained
on servers physically located in India on daily basis and (b) for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2 (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11g).

The [Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss ncluding the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(e

() In owr opinion. the aforesaid fnancial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules. 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act:

On the basis of the written representations received from the direetors as on March 31, 2024
taken on reeord by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31. 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

et

[~

The Maoditication relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters conneeted
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2 (b} above on reporting under Section [43(3j(b) und
paragraph 2 (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g),

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal Anancial controls with relerence 1o these Nnancial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate Report in
~=sAgpexure 27 to this report:
=, __..'._l,rl-'. .
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(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V ol the Act are not applicable to the
Company lor the year ended March 31, 2024:

(i) With respect to the other matters to be meluded m the Auditor’s Report i accordance with
Rule 1] of the Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and 1o
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 34¢ajo the financial statements:

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or Kind of Tunds) by the Company 10 or in any other person{s) or
entity(ies), including Toreign entities (“Intermediaries”™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall. whether, directly or indireetly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identilied in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and beliel. no funds
have been received by the Company Trom any person(s) or entitvlies). including foreign
entitics (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficianes™) or provide any guarantee, secunty or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b} contain any material
misstatement.

Mo dividend has been declured or paid during the vear by the Company .
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vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks. and as explained in note 45 (o the

standalone financial statements, the Company. has used an aecounting software which is
operited by a third-party software service provider. for maintaining its books of aecount,
Sinee, the verification of audit trail feature is not covered in the SOC | Type 2 report, we
are unable 10 comment on whether audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and
operated throughout the vear for all relevant transactions recorded i the software or
whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect
of an accounting software where the andit trail has been enabled.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registeation Number: 301003E/E300005

Membership Number: 306846
LDIN: 24506846BKGWILTTSY
Place of Signature: Gurgiaon
Date; May 30, 2024




S.R. Barusoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE | REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1| UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN
DATE OF Elin Applinnces Private Limited (“the Company™).

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
hooks of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

{iMa)A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(iXa)(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the hooks of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on elause 3(i)a)(B) of the Order is not applicable 1o
the Company.

(h)y Al Property. Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the year
in accordance with a planned programme of verilfying them once in three years which is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

() The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly exceuted in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 3 to the
financial statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Comprny.

() The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year ended March
31,2024,

(¢)  Thereare no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act. 1988 and rules made
thereunder,

(iida) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except lor
inventories Iving with third parties, In our opinion. the frequency of verification by the
management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate.
Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at March 31, 2024 and no
discrepancies were noticed in respect of such contirmations. No discrepancies of 10% or more
in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.

(b} As disclosed in note 18 10 the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. live erores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal
course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company
with such banks and financial institutions are not in agreement with the unaodited books of
accounts of the Company and the details are as follows:

(Amount in Millions)

Quarter Bank Arcount Value per Value per Discrepancy
ending books of quarterly
B _ aecount return/statement |
Citi Bank and :
23 - 5 5
Jun-27 HDFC Inventory I 248 248 Mil
Sep-23 felth Fiunh wnd 1CICH Inventory 264 264 Nil
Bank

Citi Bank and 1CICI [nventory 205 207 -3
Bank '
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Mar-24 ;jm l_h"k il Iventory 190 190 -1
ank

Jun-23 B Citi Bank Heg?f:hm 401 401 Nil

o [gupmeoiod | Tk T | | w

Dee-23 ';j‘:lf““k i T Rul:?f:mu 327 327 Nil

Mur4 :if-:;l?ank and [C1C] Rcl:?:rh]u 696 696 Nil

Note: The bank returms were prepared and filed before the completion of all financial
statements ¢losure activities which led 1o these differences between the final books of
accounts and the bank returms which were based on provisional books of accounts.

(iii) (a) During the vear the Company has provided loan to employees as follows:

ih)

i)

Particulars ' Loan {o emplovees
— | Un INE Millions)
Aggregate amount provided during the year 4,15

Employee loans -
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases | (L67
Employvee loans

During the year the investments made. guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the gramt of all loans 1o emplovees are not prejudicial o the Company's interest,

I'he Company has granted loans to employees where the schedule of repayment of prineiple has
been stipulated and the repayment or receipt are regular,

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advamees in the nature of loans granted 1w companies. firms.

limited lability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.,

fe) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted 1o companies, lirms, Limited Liability

(

(v

(v

&

Partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the vear. that have been renewed
or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same
parties.

The Company has not geanted any loans or advances in the nature ol loans, either repavable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repavment to companies. firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other partics. Accordingly, the requirement 1o report on clause
T of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respeet of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 ol the Companies Act. 2013 are applicable and accordingly. the requirement
1o report on elause 30v) of the Ovder is not applicable to the Company,

The Company has neither accepted any deposits Trom the public nor accepled any amounts which
are deemed 1o be deposits within the meaning of seetions 73 10 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder. to the extent applicable. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause
3gvi of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vi}_,a_--.LWu.J{uw broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursoant to the

W rﬁ"ﬁﬂéﬁ:}jﬁzde by the Central Government for the maintenance of eost records under seetion 148(1)
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of the Companies Act, 2013, related 1w the manufacture of Electronies ltems, and are of the

apinion that prima lacie, the specilicd accounts and records have been made and maintained. We
have not. however, made a detailed examination of the same,

(vith(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
mcluding poods and services tax, provident fund, employees” state insurance, income-tas. sales-
tax. service tax. duty of customs. duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us. no undisputed amounts pavable in respect of these statutory dues
were outstanding. at the yeéar end, for a period of more than six months from the date they hecame
payable.

(b} According the records of the Company, the dues outstanding ol income tax on account of any
dispute, are as lollows:

Name of the | Nature of | Amount (In Rs | Period to  which | Forum  where  the
statute ‘ the dues Millions)*# the amount relates | dispute is pending
Income  Tax | Indome Tax | 41.27 AY 2014-15 10 AY | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 2018-19 income Tax (Appeal) |

=Net of amount paid under protest ‘adjusted against refunds

(viii)  The Company has not surrendered or diselosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
hooks of account. in the ax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable 1o
the Company.

(ix)(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payvment
of interest thereon to any lender.

{b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(e)Term loans were applied for the purpese for which the loans were obtained.

{dy Oman overall examination ol the financial statements of the Company. no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(¢) The Company does not hiave any subsidiary. associate or joint venture. Accordingly. the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)e) of the Order is not applicable 10 the Company.

() The Company does not have any subsidisry, associate or joint venture. Accordingly. the
requirement to report on Clause 3ix ) ) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company.

{x} (1) The Company has not raised any money during the yvear by way of initial public offer / further
public offer {including debt instruments) hence, the requirement Lo report on clause 3(xKa) o
the Order 1s not applicable to the Company .

{b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares fully or
partially or optionally: convertible debentures during the yeor under audit and hence. the
requirement 1o report on clause 3(x)h) of the Order 1s not applicable to the Company.

{xid () No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
sl
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(B) During the vear. no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act. 2013

has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as preseribed under
Rule 13 off Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2004 with the Central Governiment.

(c)As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complamts received by

{xii)

{xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

ixvi)

{xwiil

(xvinl)

(%)

o il

the Company during the yvear.

(n) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Iherefore, the requirement to report on ¢lause Sixinial. (b and (¢) of the Order 1s not applicable
to the Company,

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections |88 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes o the financial
statements. as required by the applicable accounting standards, The provisions of section 177
are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under elause
3ixiin) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable o the
Company.

(u) The Company has an imermal audit svstem commensorate with the size and pature of s
business,

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued il the date of the audit repart, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence reguirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order 15
not applicable 1o the Company.

{a} The provisions of seetion 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of Tndia Act. 1934 (2 ol 1934) are nin
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement 1o report on clause (xvi)a) ol the
COheder is notapplicable o the Company,

{b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvijth) of the Order is not applicable 1w the
Company.,

(e} The Company is not a Core lnvestment Company as defined in the regulations made hy
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3{xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

id) There is no Core Investment Company as a part ol the Group, hence, the reguirement 1o
report on clause 3(xvil(d) of the Oreder is not applicable to the Company

he Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial vear. The Company has niot
incurred cash losses in the immedintely preceding finameial year,

e previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the vear and we have
taken inta consideration the issues, ohjections ar concerns raised by the outgaing auditors,

O thie basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realizaion of [nancinl assets and payment of tinancial liabilities. other
information aceompanying the financial statements. our knowledge of' the Board ol Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
gssumptions, nothing has come 1o our gttention, which causes us 1o believe that any materinl
o ,umcrmlrm exists as on the date of the audit report thut Company is not capable o meeting its
fuhilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one




SR BartiBor & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountanis

[xx)

vear [rom the balance sheet date. We. however. state that this is nol an assurance as (o the
Future viability of the Company. We further state that our reparting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any puarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within o period of one vear from the balance sheet date. will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongeing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required (o
be transferred to a fund :.nm.irtd in Schedule V1 of the Companies Act. 2013 (the Act) within

a period ol six months of the expiry of the fin: wcial vear. in complinnee with second proviso to
sub section § of section 135 of the Act, This matter has been disclosed in note 38 to the linancial
statements.

(b} There are no unspent amounts in tespeet of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to & special account in compliance of provision of sub seetion (6) of seetion 135 of
Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 38 1o the financial statements.

FFor S.R., Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration Number: 301003 E/E300005

%W\ il 'f“-‘

sership Number: :'!ﬂﬁH-iﬁ' ; —
DIN: 23506846 BKGWILTTOY

Place of Signuture: Gurugram
Drate: May 30, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ELIN APPLIANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial stitements ol Elin Appliance
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting eriteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAT).
These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business. including adherence to the Company’s policies, the sateguarding of its assets. the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act. 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinien on the Company's internal financial controls with relerence
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Giuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing. as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 1o the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. both issued by 1CAL Those Standards and the Guidance Nole
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonahle
assurance about whether adequate internal linancial controls with reference 1o these linancial statements
was estublished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures W obtain audit evidence aboul the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness, Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to linancial statements included oblaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of iterngl control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judpement. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for
vur audit apinion on the Company’™s internal financial controls with relerence 1o these lnancial
slatements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed W
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A compamy's internal Tinancial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and
fairly refleet the transactions and dispositions ol the assets of the company: {2y provide reasonable

(W1 ] -
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assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary (o permit preparation of Nnancial statements in

aecordance with generally aceepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in aceordunce with authorisations of management and directors ol the
company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely  detection of
unauthorised acquisition. use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effec
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statemenis

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override ol controls, muterial
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be deteeted. Also. projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference 1o Hnancial statements w future periods are sulbject o
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects. adequate internal financial controls with
reference 1o financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over fnanciul
reporting eriteria established by the Company considering the essential components of interal control
siated in the Guidance Note issuced by the [CAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Nuntber: 301003 E/E300005

aftner S Lo
Membership Number: 506846 " i ”;"’-?-'_-_"5;",
LIT3IN: 24506840BKGWILTT9% :

Place of Signature: Gurgaon

Date: May 30, 2024




ELIN APPLIANUES PRIVATE LIMITEDR
Standalone Balinee Sheet a5 a0 Muarch 31, 2024
A enrennts ave i ANR A lTons, wlesy otherwise siared)

3 Note As at As al
Farticubicy Nofs)  Murch 31,2024 Murch 31, 2023
LEET B
Mol rrenl Asseis

(i) Property, Mot ond Eguipment k' 380,97 33308

(b Capital work-in-progress 1 - oy

() Finangial Assets

(1 Imestments 3 8418 15,08
(ih Other Financial A<sets f 45 1.6

(A3 CHher neon-carnen) assets R 1349 3196
Vbl Mom Current Assels 413.23 Jﬂd-ﬂ.
urrent Assets

Lk Irnentories H 23803 21 Lah

(1 Fimencial Axsets

(i Tiw estinents (4] 4.9 4.59
(i) Trade receivables Il H96.40 SBILLS
P Cash ongd cosl equivalents 12 014 013
(v h Bank bolonces olher i {15) ahove 13 .31 -

(v iher Flnancial Assers [4 .68 1.78

() Cprrenl Tix Asscls (wel) .t 0.El -

() Ol carrent ssets I'5 44,18 .64
Total Current Assels D14 Bo.HY
Total Assels 143,68 1,221.60
Eapuiry sl | fabilities
Fijuity

(i} ity Share Caprital 1 200 200

{h) Mber Equity L Ti7.36 Tdinil
Ptk Baguity THU A T48.x1
Linhitities
Sonecurrent Lonbilities

cih Priwisions 17 - 141

vy Dreberred tas lohilities {(et) T 2217 1910
astn] S Cwewent Linhifities 2277 20150
£ urreni Linbilitices

(i) Fameal Liahilities

(1) Baorrony ings I8 107.47 131,83
{1 Supplier’s eredi S 80 .
(i) Trode pavables
= tatal cutstanding dues of micrn and small enterprises 19 R6.40 93,77
- bt evastandling dues of ereditors other than micro and 149 335,79 20013
smal] enlerprises
Livy Oither financial liabilites 20 [1.20 1589

() Okver current liobilities rir .95 370

(&) Pravisisns 23 k5 4.58

(b} Crenst Taw liabilities (MNet) | - 238
Tertaid Corrent Linhilivies 611.55 45220
Total Linbilities 634,32 472.79
Totaa! Bogpmaity el Linhilitics 1,403,658 1,221,600

e pecomspainy ing motes form s intepral ot of the stmdalone franeial statements,

A per onr repart of even diote attached
For S b BA LI & Co, LLIP
Chartercd Aceountints

Firem Mg, Yo, 300003 ESE 300005
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ELIN AMPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
AN amoninis are in INR Millians, wadess otherwise stated)
Mote For the vear ended For the yvear ended
Pueticulars
MNofs) March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023
I INCOME
Revenue fiom aperitions 24 2393.77 2.304.29
ther Income 25 .68 6.72
Total Ineame (1) 2400045 2.511.02
Il EXPENSE
Comst ol Material Consumed 26 196038 2. 11831
Iurchnses of stock-in-trade 2561 1.34
Change in inventories of finished goods, work=in progress and stock-in-trade 27 0,77 (310.36)
Emplovee benefiis expense 28 24437 232,98
Finance Costs gt} 3RS 233
Dieprociition & amortization expenses 3.4 i1.99 2160
Chher Expenscs 30 95.38 102,85
Toial Expenses (11) 2. 382.35 242910
I Profit before tax (1-1H 18,10 B1.92
IV Tax expenses
- Current tay e ] [8.50
= Adjustment of wx relating 1o earlicr period (1, 199 (1,52
- Pelerrid Tax |65 4.69
Total tax expenses 1.56 2371
Voo Profit for the year (HH-1V) 14.54 5821
VI Ohber eomprehensive Income (O01):
Teems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remepsurements of defined benefit plans 803 {0.91)
Tux expense on ilems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss {2.02) 0.23
Items that will be reclassificd to profit or loss
Cidin{ Lisss) on Equity Instruments desipnited throwgh OC1 - .16
Pax expense on items that will not be reclassified to profit or liss
Other comprehensive income for the year after tax o001 (0.52)
ML Total comprehensive income for the vear net of tax (V + V) 20.55 57.68
VI Earnings per share from confinuing and toial operations attributable to the k1|
equity holders of the Company |face value of INR 10/- each|
- Basie ond diluted  (amount in INR} 72.70 291.03
I e accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

A per oar report of even date attached

For S.R. BATLIBO! & Co. LLP
Chartercd Accountants
Firm Reg. Yo 300003E/E30005
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Vimy Kumar Sethia

For and on behalf of the Board
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Chiurisy' Sethia
Director
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Place - New Delhi
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BLAS APPLIANG ES PRIVATE LIMITED
Stundilione Statement of Cash Flows Tor the vear ended March 31, 2024
CAN armenanis e fr INR A ians, uofess offerms e st

For the year ended For the vear ended

tariicol
raria iy March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Lo Cash sy Teom Operating Aetivitios :
et Profit before tax 18.10 Ri.92
Adjustmenis for
Prepreciation and smorlization expenses 3.ha 2160
Loss on disposal of property, plunt and couiprment (el (.08 .30
Fair valug (zaln) on financial assets held w fair vloe through profit o loss (0.31) (0,93}
Prowishon Fier doubtfial dabt (written back) / written ofi iz (0K
Dividend wmd interest neame (182} {1.80%
Finpmeo cosrs 186 2,33
3392 2088
Changee in operating assets and labilities :
Hinerease lidocrease in tradie wrd other receivable (107641 .61
Inerease )’ Decrease in Inveniaries {2643} [3AT.H1)
e/ (Diereaised in trade and othier poyvables 192,64 1,86
3857 Ina7
Cush generited from nperutions I 1059 141.47
Fiwnirme tases il {neth (5.11) [20,37)
St ensh peoerated From / (used ind sperating activitles 10548 12064
L Cash o from Tnvesting activities
Purchase far praperty. plant and equipment fncluding CWIP (82700 (83.1m)
Procevds from sale of propers. plant aid gyuipment 365 .30
Pruseeeds From sale of Current Investment . .76
Diividends neceived P .77
Ierea peceived (AR .03
et Cosh generated from / {used in) investing aetivities {77.24) (#1.29)
HE - Cush Bow Team Financing Activiiies
fropeds from hnrl'ﬂ“jl]]BI‘- } i
[ Repayment) of bofmwines (24.36) (3845
Finanes Costs pald {3.86) {2.53)
Sei Cash penerared from / {used in) finuncing aetivitdes (2822 (41.01)
v Neninereaseddecrease) incash & cash eiguivalents {1+ 11 + 111) KT} {161
Vo Cash and eash equivalents at the beginning of the vesr 13 0.7
VI Cusho ol sl equivalents st end of the e - 14 THE]

Manlgs:

I The Sumdalome Statement of Cash Dow his Been prepared under the indirect method ns-ser-oul i the Ind AS -

it the Compueies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
- Fignres in bracket indicate cash outflow.
30 Uash o ensh equivalents (refer Note 12) comprise of the followings:
Cash on b
Cheguses i Dand
Butinees with Scheduled banks in Current seeouits
Balinees per statement of cash Movws

1 Analysiv of movement in borrowings
[Forrowings oo thie beginning of the ver
Cash flimws
Mo eash elinnges
Bowrawings at the end of the year

The aecompuny ing notes form an integral port of the standalone linaneiml statemernls.

T "Staterient of Cash Flow" us speciTed

0,14 (L6
- i
= {106
0.14 13
131,83 173
(24,360 (35.48)
0747 131.83

As perour wpord ol éven date stisichod
Foor S BATLIBOL & Co. LLP
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I3ne t Mav 30, 3124
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Elin Appliances Private Limited
Muterial Accounting Policies

(elmomnt in INR miflion, wrivss otherwise stated)

Corporate information

I-din Applinnees Private |imited (*the Company*) was incorporated in India on August 21, 2002 under the prowvisions of the Companics Act,
P56 (01N L2930 2402 TE425004), I'he Compuny isengaged in the business of Electrical & Electionie Froducts and Components,
Fhie registered office of the company is located at 4771, Bharu Ram Rogd, 23, Daryagun]. New Delhi-110002 (Indis) and manafacturing plants
i the state of Himachal Pradesh,

Phe Standulone Finaneial Statements is approved for issue by the Compuny's Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 30, 2004,

Changes in aceounting policies and diselosures:-

The Ministry of Corporate Affiains has potified Companies (Indian Aceounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 duted 31 Mareh 2023 1o
amend the fofloning Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 Apil 2023, The Coimpany applied lor the firse-time
thesi amendments;

(i} Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS §
The amendments clarily the distinetion between changes fn decounting estimates, changes In accounting policies and the correction of
erroms: IE s atso boen cloeified how entities wse measirement techniques und fripiits o develop aooounting estimates,

The amendments had noimpact on the Company™s Standalone financial statements.

(it} Disclosure of Acconnting Polivies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

e urmerdments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosares that are more uselil by replacing the requirement for entitics
o diselose thelr “significant” sccounting policies with g requirement to diselose their ‘matertal’ socounting policies and edding guidance
o By entities apply the coneept of materiality in making decisions about arcounting policy disclosures,

e amendments haye had an impoct on the Compuny s disclosures of secounting policies. but not on the mnsurement, recoenition or
presentatlon of uny items In the Compeny s financial statements,

(it} Deferved Tax reluted to Assets and Liabilities arising from u Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12
M amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind A5 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions thut
pive tise i equal texable and deductible temporary differences such as leases,

Apart from these, consequential amendments umd editorials have been made 10 other Ind AS ke Ind AS 108, Dnel AS 102, Ind A% 103,
bl Acs TOT, dnd AN BHE Imd AR | ES ond Ind 4534,

Muterial accounting polivies
A summary of the material neccunting policies appliad in the prearation of the Stundulong Financial Stalementy sre oy given below,
These aecounting policies huve been applied consistently to all periods presented in the Swandalomne Fingneial Siatements,

Basis ol Preparation

L1 Statement of compliance
The Stundalone Finaneial statements hive been prepared in accordance with Indian Aveounting Stundueds (Ind AS) preseribed
ander the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2003 nelified under the Companies { Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
tits amended from time w time) and presentation Including disclosure requirements of Division 11 of Schedule U w the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111, us upplivable w the CFS and the seeounting principles generally
aceepied in Indin. The Company has consistently upplisd pecounting policiesto all perisds,

T Compramy has prepared the fnancial statements on the basis thin It will contint to operale 15 4 oning conger,

L2 Historical Cost Convention
e Stosdalene Financial statements of the Cempany are prepared in acoordonce with Indinn Accounting Standards (nd AS), under
the historical cost cinvention and on secrunl basls as per the provisions ol the Companies Act 2003 (“the Aet™), except for the
fislliing items:

Certuin fnuncial nssats and labilities moasured st Fair value (refer ueeounting policy regutm cial instruments),
Petined bene i plmt, Plan assets are measured af falr value, S
LA
- 8 Ry
4 =il
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Elin Appliances Private Limited
Material Aceounting Policies
{Amemnt i INR million, wiless otherwise stated)

Fuinptfowaad and peespntalion dinreney
Hems included in the Standalone Financial statements are measired using the currency of the primary econrmic environment in which the
ertity operates {*the functional currency” . The Standilone Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which rs-also e
Company's functional currency. All smounts have been rounded-off to the nearest million, up o twe places of decimal, unless otherwise
indicated. Amounts baving absolute value of less than INR 1000 have been rounded and g presented as INR 0,00 Millions in the
standatone Finaneinl Stalements.

Suammary of material aceounting policies

LI Corremt vs non-curvent classilication
Phe Compeny presents assets and liabilities in the Stundalone statement of assets and liabilities based on current/ nen-current classification.

A assed 14 reated ms coment when it ls:
* Fapected wbe realized or imended to be sold or consumed in normul aperating eyele
*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
= Expected o be realized within twelve months @fler the reperting period, ar
= Cush oorcush equivalent unless restricted fom being exchanged or used 1o settle o Hability for atleast twelve months after the
reporting period,
The Coempany classities all other dssels 48 mot-cutrent.

4 Fieehility is current when:
' Irisespected Lo be seitled in mormal operating cvele
¢ lvisheld primarily for the purpose of trading
* Itisndue o be settled within twelve months afler the reporting period, or
* There i no unevnditional right to defer the settlement of the linbility for at least twelve monthsafter the reporting period,

Ihie Compary ¢liassiffes o] other Habilities as nonecurrent,
Dhefirrend s assets ond liabilities are clissified as non-eurrent assets and labilides.

Ve operting vk is e tine between the acquisition of assets for processing and thelr realzation in-cash snd cosh equivalents, The Comypany
Fias identifed weelve months s is bperating evele.

L3 Property pliant and equipment

fecsgnithon wnd faitial Measureinent
Property., plant and equipment is recognized when it is probable tha future economic benefis ossociated with the ittt will Tlow 1o the
Company and the gost ol cach item can be measured reliahly, Property, plunt and equipmient are infially stted ot thejr ost

Cent of miet inéludes:
i) Purchise price, net ol any rade discounts and relates
bh Cost diveetly artributable 1o the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing asset 1o its working condition for the
intended use
€] Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & réstoring the site on which it is lovated i1
FECOERition orileris are mel

Ammounts paid towands the sequisition of property, plant and equipment ewilstanding us of each reporting date and the cost of property.
prant and equipment not ready for imended use before such date e disclosed under capital advanees and enpital work=in-progress

(U WIP respectively.,

significant Purts of an fem of PPE (including mjor inspections) havieg difterent wseful lives & material value or other factors nre

accounted for g sepaute components. Al olher tepairs ini maintenancs costs ane recopnized In the ent of profit and loss as
: 3 sl o,

ingsrmed, T

TR X 207, '!H'_,
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Elin Appliances Private Limited
Material Accounting Policies

fAmaonnt i AINR mitlion, unless otherwise stated)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciution and accumulated impairment losses, il
any. Subsequent expenditre is capitalized it is probable that future economic benefits ussociated with the expenditure will flow to the
Campany and cost of the expenditure can be measured relinbly.

e ety el sefied fives
Depreciution on property, plant and equipment is provided on struisht line basis over the catimated usefial lives of the assels as specified
i sehwdule 1T of the Companies s, 2013,

Particulars Useful life as per Particulars Useful Life as per
) Schedule 11 Schedule 11
Crimplters 3 Yeurs Factory Building 3 Years
“Servers 6 Yeurs Building (other than fack iy huilding) il Years
Office Eequipment 5 Yenrs Electric Installation and Equipments 10 Years
Furmiture uni fixiures 1 Yenrs Manoy Cyveles 16 Yeurs
_.‘r'l."u:ﬁ-f'l-'ﬁfﬁ?ﬁih_m including Dies, wols and 1015 Yeurs Motor Vehicles & Lo § Years
Molkls

Brepreciation on additions to'deductions from property, plant and equipment during the perod is charged an pro-ruta basis from/up 1o ihe date
on which the asser s availible for use/disposed. Each part of un item of propery. plant and cquipment is depreciied separely if the cost of
ot fs significant in relation w the total enst of the item and usefil fife of that part is different from the uselul tife of remaining assel. Depreciation
rricthinds, uselid lves and eesidunl values are reviewed ad cach financial year-erid and adjusted prospectively, i uppropriane,

Elerecagmition

Amitem of propeny, plant and equipment wid any significan purt nitially recognized is derecognived upon disposal or when no future econen fc
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or los arising on derecognition of the asset (caleulated a5 the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the ‘carvsing amownt of the asset) is Included in the Standalone Statement of Profit and loss when the asset is
derecopnized.

Intangible assets

Intanpible assets scquired separately ore siated at cost less aceanulated amortization and accumulated impaimment foss. iFamy., Intangihle sssets any
amrtized an stralght fine hasis over the estimated wseful life. Estimuled nseful 1ife of the soltware is considered as 3 yeurs, Amartisation methods.
Ul fives s restdual vitloes are reviewed in each financtal year / period end and changes, I sny, are sceounted for prospectively. An intiaible
sssel i€ de-rppognised on disposal, or when no fiture eoonomic benefits are expocied from use o ilispessail, Chains or lpsses arizing from dercoognition
of an intangible wsset, measured as the difference hetween the el disposal procecds amd the carrying wmotinl of the assel e recognised in the
Sundalone Slatement ol Profit and Loss,

Impairment of non-fnancial asseis

At eaeh reporting date, the Compuny mesesses, whether there is an indication: that un asset may be impuired 10 uny indication exists, or when unnig)
impairment 1esting foran assét is required, the Company estimites the asset's recoverahle amount. An assel's recovernble amount ks the higher
ol an asset's or cash- generating unit’s (CGLI) Fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, Recoverable amiumt i determined fir an
mdividual usset. unless the usset dises not generate cash inflows that ane largely independent of those from other assets or Company”™s of gssets,
When the careying amount of an msset or CGU exeeeds i recovierable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is writien divwn 1o fis
reeeterable amount und the impairment loss, including impairment on invenlories are recognized in the Standalane Statement af Profft and
Joss,

I assessing value in use, the estimated future cosh tlows ure discounted 16 their present value using upre-tas discount rate that reflects
currenl market assessments of the time value of money and the clsksspecifie o the assa,

For assets excuding gondwlll, an sssessment is made af each reporting dale (o determine whether there is an indication that previously

tecopnived impuirment Iosses no longer exist or have decreased, If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGL's

rechveruhle amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been o change in the assumptions used 1

determing the uw.r.urx_u_\lzim'fruh]c At since the lust impairment loss was recapnized, The reversalic limteds L the cirrying amowm
et




Elin Appliances Private Limited

Material Accounting Policies

flteenint in INR mitlion, widvss otherwise stated)

ol the usset dises not exeeed its recoverable amount. nor exceedilie carrying amount that would have been determined, net ol depreciation, had
ner fenpairment foss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such reversal is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and loss,

Lh Inventories

a)  Invertories (including raded goods ) are valued at the lower of cost and met realiahle value.
presenl location and comdition wre sccounted Tor as foliows:

Costs incurred in bringing each product fo irs

*  Raw muerials Cost includes cost ol purchise und other costs nedrned in bringing the inventuries 1o their present location and condition,

Cost is determingd on first in, fiest out buasis,

»  Finished goods and miermedinte products (ineluding manufaetured companents b Cost includes cost of dineet muterials and labour ond
a propartion of manufbeturing overhesds hased on the nermal opeeating cipacity. Cost 1s determined on fiest in, first out basis,

»  Siores amd spares, consumables and packing materdials cost includes direet expenses and is delermined

imethiod.

an the basis of first in first out

b Netreatbable value is the estimated selling price inthe ordinney course of business, lesy estimatedeosts of completion and the estimared
wusts evessary 1o make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-hy-item hasis,

L7 Revenue recognition

Hevenie is measured ol the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and
and s wdjusied for variable considerations,

it excludes amaunts collected on behalf'ol thind parties
Any subsequent chonge in the trmsaction price is then allocated 1o the performance obligations i the

coniract on the same husis as at contrat fnception, The Company recognizes revenue for variable comsidereation swhen L {5 probable that « significans

reversal in thie smount of comulative revenue recognized will ot oeeur,
comsideration vsing most likely amount method. Consequently, amounts allocated to a sat
a5 recluetion of revanie, m the perio
chumges are approved gither W the contract scope or oontriet price

a)  Sale of products and Services
Revenue from sale of products is recopnized ot the puint in time when control of

The Company estimates the amount of revenue 1o be recognized on variable
isfied performance oblipation are recognised us revenae, or
d i which the transaction price changes, Contract modifieations.are acooumted for whin additioms, deletions or

the poods is transfierred 1o the customer ot

the time of shipment & or receipt of goods by the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration 1o which the Compaiy

expects i be etithed in exchange for those goods or services,

The Company has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arran
transferring them w the customer.

gements as It typically controlsthe poods or services before

Sales-related obligation associated with sole of goads cannot b purchased separately smd they serve as an assorance that the
prioducts sold comply with sgreed-upon specifications. Awcordingly, the Company necounts for such obligation in aceordunce with

Ind A% 37 Provistons, Contingent Libilitics and © cntingent Assels,

The gonds and serviee tax (GST) s not received by the Company on ils own account. Rather, it s tuxeollected on behalf of the

povernment. Aceordingly, it s excluded from revenue,

b} Other Operating Rey enue
Esport rcentive is recognieed when there is reasonable assurunce that the Company will
meemtive will e receiviad,

) Other Revenuoe

comply with the conditions and the

*  Interest income: Interest income |s reconised as interest aecrues using the elfective interest method (“EIR™} that is the ram tha

exictly discounts estimuted future cash recelpts through the expected life of the financial nstrumen| i
Ui (inriehl asseq,

* Dividendds: Dividend income s recognised when the right 10 receive puyment is estabiished,

* Rental income: Rental income arising from operating leases or on
over the lease ferms & included in other non-operating income

thie net esprving amount of

investment propertics is accounted for on g striight-line bisis
in Statement of Prolit and Loss,

*  lnsurance Claims: Insurince claims sré accounted for s und when admitted by the concerned authority,

i) Contract hatanees

* Contraet agsetse A gontract asset is the right to consideration fn
P e

exchange for goods or serv p‘ﬁﬁﬁd_m the customer, 17
(S




Elin Appliances Private Limited
Material Accounting Policics
At i INR mrillion, wnless otherwise stated)

8

Toxes

the Compuny performs by transfeming soods of Servicies (o o customer before the customer pays considemtion or before
payment is due. @ contract asset isrecopnized for the earned consideration thai is conditional,

*  Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company's righ to an amount of consideration thar is unconditional {ie.,
only the passage of time is required befisee puyment of the considerar on is due),

* Contract liabilities: A contruel liability is the abligtion to transter goods or services 1o-a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of considertion is due) lrom the customer. I1'a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers goods orservices to the customer, 4 contract liahility is recogniszed when the pavment is made, of the
pepment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when theCompany perlorms under the
conirce.

) Righi of return
The Company provides a costomer with o right o retuen in case of any defects or on ervinals of quality, The Convpany uses the expected
vatlue method 10 estimate the goods that will net be reumed because thismethod best predicis the amount of varigble consideration
lovwhich the Company will be entitled. Pherequirements in Ind AS 115 0n constrafning estimates of variable consideration are ulén
applivd inorder to determine the amount ol varioble consideration that can be included in the transaction price.

The application of fnd A% 115 did st have any moserial impact on recopnition. and moesurement pringiples. However, it results: in
pdditiosnl presentation mnd Jiselosare requirements . for the Compuny,

The Compuny has also applied the practical expedient under Ind AS 115 for incremental cost of obaining o contract and has
recognized such cost us sn expense when incurred if the amortizationperiod of the asset is ane vear or less,

Feey expunse comprises curnent wx expense ond delermed fa.

) Cuerrent inenme

Current fx assets and labilities e mensired ot the gimount expected o be recovered from or paid tothe taxation guthorities in
aceordance with relevanl tan repulations. The tax rates and. s laws wsed 1o compute the amount are those that gre enacled or
substantively enacted. at the reporting dute in the eountries where the Com Ty Grperates and penerates table income, Current Ineome
ta reluring to items recognised outside profit or lass is recognised vutside profit of loss (efther in other com prebensive income or jn
wijuity ), Curment by ilems are recognised in cormelation to the wnderlying transaction elther fn OCH or dircetly in equity. Management
periedically evalumes positions mken in the tx retums with respect o situntions in which applicuble fax regulations are subject 1o
interpretution umd considers whether it is probable that  taxation authiority will aceept an uneertsin tax treatment.

Clarment tax sasets amnd tox fabititles sre offson where the entity has u legally entorceahle dght to ofFsetand infends either to settle ona
miet hiasis, or 1o renlize the asset and settle (he libility simultuneousty.

b)Y Deferred tax
Deferred tax i prwided using the iiability method on wmporary differences between the tax bases of assets and labilities and their
rrying amounts for lnancial reporting purposss it the reporting date,

Preferred tay Rabilities are recognised G all taxable temparary diffcrences:

Deferred rx sssers ure necignised for all deductible temporary differences, the camy forward of unused tax credits and any unusad
L fosses. Defirred tax assets are recopnised to the extent that it is probable thi taable profit will be availubli apainst which the
deductible temporary difTerences, and the earry forward of unused fax eneclits and umesed tax losses can be wilised,

Peferred tax is recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit and Toss exeapt o the extent it relites to tems recognized outside profit
or s, in which case is recognized ouwside profit or loss (either in othir comprehensive incame of in equity ), Deferred mx iemis ure
recoemized in eorrelation o the underlying tramsaction either in OC] or direct] ¥ eyuity,

The catrying wnount of deterred fux ussets is reviewed un each teporting dute snd redoced b the extent that 11 &5 no longer probable

thit sulficlent table profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred Ly assat to be wtilised, Unrecopnized deferred

isets dre re-pssessednbonch reporting date and are recopnized to the extent that it hiss become proby q!]ﬁf,ﬂrs teable profi will
- I__'}I*I -._.dl 4
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allow the deterred tax me5et 10 b recoversd,

In assessing the recoverability of datisrred tax nssels, the Company relies on the ssme forecas| mssumptions  used elsewhere in the
liraniial swtements und in other management reports. which, among other things, reflect the potential impait of climute-relmed
develapment on the business: such as increased cost of production as a nesult of measures 1o reduce carbion emission,

[eterred tas assets and |iabilitics ore measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the perind when the asset is realized or the
liability is seitledd, based on wx rates tand tax faws) thist have been shacted or substantively enacted ot the reporting dute,

Deferred tax reliting 1 items recognised outside peofit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (elther in other comprehensive
inceme or in equity), Defiernsd tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCT or directly in equity

The Company offsers deferred tax wssels ind deterred tox lighilities if and only if it has a legally enforcenble right o sel off current
s sessets nd curnent ta liabilities and the defirred tax assets and deferred tax Tinbilitics relate 1o income txes levied by the sime
Lawastiom authirity on either the sume taxable entity or different taxable entities which interl either 10 settle current tax liabilities and
askets o o et hasis, o o realise the assets and seithe the lihilities simultunenusly, i each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax labilities or nssefs sre expeeted 1 be setiled or recovered,

29 Forelgn currencies
Phe Company 's Standalone fAnancinl sttements are presented in INEL which is also the company s finetional currency, Foreign Currency
ransactions are recorded in the finctional currency, by upplying the exchange rale between the functional currency and the foreign
curreney il the dote of the trunsection,

Foreign cusrency monctary items outstanding at the reporiing date are converted 1o Runctional eurrency using the closing rate (Closing selling
rides fiae Habilities ond closing buying e for nssets), Non- monctary ftems denominated in a foreign cumency which are carried at historical
costane reported using tie exchange rate at the date of the transactions,

Exehange differences arising on seltlement of monetars: tems, or restatement as ot reporting date, at rutes different from those gt which
they were initiglly recorded. sre recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and luss in the period in which they arise, These
excinge differencesare presented in the Standalone Statement of Profit and loss on et brsis,

L0 Employee benefi
0} Short-term enmiployee benefiis
Employee barelits such s salaries, shiel ferm compensated absences, and other benelits falling due wholly within twelve months of
retulering the service are clussified 38 shark-term employee benefits and undiscounted smount of such Benefits are expensed in the
standolone Surement of Praft and less in i the periad iy which the employee renders the related services,

b} Pest-cmployment berefits
* Defimedd Comtvibution Plan: A delined contributiog plian B 4 plan wnder which the Company puvs fived contributions into a separale
entity and will huve mo legal or comstructivis hligation to pay further imounts,

I'he Compury mutkes specified monthly contribulion wwards provident fund (*PF* ) and employee stafe insurance scheme (*ESI') which
s wdefined contribution plan. The Company's contribution is recognized as an expense in the Standalone statement of profitand loss
daring the period in which the employee renders the related service.

* Defined Benefit Mhan: A defined benetit plan is o post-employment benefit plan other than & defined contribution plan, Under such plans,
the obligation for any benetits eemains with (he Compeany. The Company's lahility towirds gratuity ond leave Encashment is in the
nature of defined berel® plan,

The Company has on ebligation towards gratwity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees, The plan provides
fioe 3t lump sum payment 1o vested employees ol retiromeent, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an smount
based o the respective cmployee’s salary and the renure of employment. Vesting securs upon completion of five vears of service. The
Company makes periodic contributions 1o the Kotak Mahindra Lif Insurance Limied tnd Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co, Lid for the
Giratuity Plan in respect ol employees.

The employers' lepve encashment sehieme s managed by HDFC Life Insurance Company Limited which s-adefined benelil plin. The
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present vadue of obligation is determined hased on sctuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method and is recognised on the basis
oF eligible leave balances o emplovees as on valuation date,

Ihe Tuhiliy in respect of gratuity and leave encashment is accroed in the books of sccounts on the hasis of actuarial valuation carried out
by ndependent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method,

Phe Company's net obligation is measured al the present value of the estimated fiture cash flows using u discount rate based on the mark
sleld on government securities of & maturity perfod equivalent (o the welghted aversee maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations a
cach reporting date,

Re-muensurement. comprising actuprial gains and fosses, & recognized in other comprehensive income and §s reflected in retained earnings
timid thisaeme is noteligihle 1 be reclassified 1o Standalone Statement of Profit and loss,

Blined benedit costs eomprising current service eost, past sorviee cos, inlersst cos gid galng or lsses on settlements are recognized
in the Standalone Starement of Profit and Toss as employvee benetits expense, Gains or losses on settlement of any deflned benclit plan
are neeoznized when the seutlement oceurs, Past service cost s recopnbeed o5 expense o the earller of the plan amendment or
curtailment and when the Company recognizes refated restructuring costs or terminationhencelits.

¢} Other long-term employee henefits
Henefits prder the Company's compensated absences constitute other King-tem emploves bunelits, recogrized as an expense in the
Standulone Statement of Profit and loss for the perod in which the employee his rendered services. The obligntion recognized in
respect of these long-term benefits is measured at present vatue of the obligation bused on netuarial valustion rsine the Prsjected Unit
cradit methsl,

Long term conpliver henolit costs comprising current service cosl, interest cost and guing of losses on curtailments amd settlements, re-
messurements mcluding actuarial eaing and losses are recognized in the Standatone Statement of Profit and loss as emplovee benefil
L

LI Cagh and eash equivalenis
Cash b eash eguivalent inelude cush on hand, cash a1 banks und short-temm deposits with original matorities of three months or less
that s readily comventible 1o Known amiunts of cnsh and which aresubject to an insignificant risk ol change In value.

For the purpese of the Standulone stnement of cash Nows, cash und cosh cojuivalents comsist of unrestricted  cush and shori-term depasits.
as detined ahove us they are considered an imegral part of thie Company’s cash maniEement.

112 Borrowing Cosi
Burowing costs dircctly attributable to the acquisition, construction of qualifying wsssets e capitalised os part of the cost of such assets upto
the assets i substuntially rewdy for their intended nse,

Fhe lown origination costs directls witributable to the scquisition of horruwings (e.g. loan provessing fee. upfront fee) are amortised on (he
hasis ol the Effective Interest Rate (E1R) method over the term of the loan, All other horrowing costs ore recopnised in the Stmdalone
Staterent of Profit wmd Joss in the period in which they are incumed.

203 Provisions, conlingent assets and contingent linbilities
Al Provisions
I"rovisions are recognized when the Compiny has a present obligation (el or constructive] asa resultof & past event, il is probable
thit an outllow ol resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation und o reliable estimate can be
mside of the amaount of the ohiligation, The amount recognized ns u provision is thee best gstimate of the consldertion reguined wsen le
thepresent obligation a the end of the reporting period, considering the risk und srcertaintiss surrounding the obligation,

IT the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted Using a corrent pre-taoxmte that reflects, when
appropriate. the risks specitic to the Hability, When discounting is used, the Increase in the provision due 1o the passage of time s
reiognized as o finnmee cost.

b Wareanties

Prowisions for tl_w-_:;gu_:.:giu lrability of warmnty abligations under sale of goods are recopnised W_ﬂnr‘s best estimuate il
" i
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the claims of the customers under warranty ure probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated,

¢} Contingent linbilities
Contingent luhilities are disclosed whon there isa possible obligation or present oblizations th misy bt probeably will set, require an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount ol such ihligation canmt be measured refiably. When there is possible
obligition or u present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodving economic benetits is remate, no
provision ordiselosure is made.

These are reviewed ut cach financial reporting date and udjusted to reflect the cument hest estimtes,

) Contingent assets
Contingent assets are nut recoznized though are disclosed, whene an inflow of econoimie benefits isprobable,

L Leases
The Company issesses at contract inception whether a contract is; or contains, a lease, That is, i the contrct conveys the righl
0 control the use ofan identilied usset for a period in exchange for consideration.

a) Company us i lesses
The Company applics a single recopnition and measurement approach for all lewses, except fise short- term legises and leases of lowe
vilue assets. The Company recognizes hease Habifities 1o muke lease payments and right-of-use sssets representing the right 1o use
the underlving nssels,

o Highi-of-use assets

The Company recopnizes right-of-use assets ut the commencement date of the lease (ie., the dute the uncderlying wsset i uvaikahle
flor use). Right-of-use assets an: measured a1 cost, less any aceamulated depreciation snd fmpairment losses, and udjusted for any fe-
measurement of fease labifities. The cost ol right-ol-use assets includes the amount of lease libilities recogmized, initial direct costs
incurred.and lease payments macde at or before the commencement date less uny lease incentives received. Right-ol-use assots are
depreciated over the shorer of the Jease term and theestimated useful lives of the assots.

I ownership of the leased asset transfees 1 the Company ol the énd of the ledse term or the cost reflectsthe exercise of & purchuse
nption, depreciation s caleulated using the sstimated useful life of the asset,

Right-vl-use pssets are tested 1or impairment whenever there i any ncication thal thelr carving amounts miry not be recoverable,
lmpivment boss, i any, is recognized in the Sundalone Statement of Frofit and [oss,

i} Lemse lahifiries

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities meastired al the presenl value of lease povments 10 be
smtiacde ot the bease term, The lease piyments inelude [xed payments {inchuding in substance lived pvments) loss any lemse incentives
teceivable, variable lease payments that dipend oo an index or e rate, and amaunts expected 10 be paid under residual value gusrantees.
Uhit lease paymients also include the exercise price of o purchase aption reasonably certain o be exercised by the Company and
mayments of penaltivs for terminating the lease, i the lease term reflects the Company exercising (he aption to lerminate. Variuble
leise puyments thit do oot depend on sin index org re are recopnized a4 expenses (unless they are incorred to produce inventories) in the
period in which the event or condition that iriggers the pavment peeurs,

I caleubating the present value of lese payments, e Company uses its Incremental horrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the inferest rate implicit in the leuse is not readily determinable. Alter the commencement date, the amount of lease Fabilities is
increased weoreflect the aeeretion of imerest and reduced for the lemse pvments made, [n addition, the carrying ammmi of lease
lihilities is re-measured if there i a modification, o change in the lose term, u chunge in the lease puyments (e.g., chinges 1 future
iy ments nesulting from o ehange inoan index or mte tsed 1o determine suellesse puyments) ora change in the ssessment of an
option 1o purchase the underlying asset. The Company's lease Tiabilities are included in fnancial linhifities

L1 Short term lease and leases of Tow value assers

The Company applies the shart-term lease recognition exemption to its short-lerm leases contracts including lease of residential
promises and offices (he., those Jeases that huve o lease term of 12 months or less froan the commencement dite and do ot contain o
purchase option, 1t also apphies the lease of Tow-valuc assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment thit re considersd
b Jose value, Leitse payments an shor-term feases and leases of Tow-value gssets are recoumi on a straight-line
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Basis over the lease lerm.

4| Single diseount rute
Fhe Company has applied the availahle practical expedient with respect 1o single discount e whercinsingle discount rate is ysed
Lo portfsliss of legses with reasomably similar chirscter stics.

b) Company us o lessor
Leases in which the Company does not mransfir substantially il the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of un et are clissi fed as
operiting leasss, Hentul income arising is secounted loron g straighi-line basis over the lewse terms, Initial direet costs incurred i negotinthng
il arranging an operating lease are added (o the carrying amount of the leased asser and recngnised over the lease term on the same hasis
s retital imeome, Contingent rents are recognised us revenue in the period in which they are carned,

L15 Finaneral instruments
A Timancial instrument is sy contret that gives rise 1oa fnancial nsset of one entity and o financial liability or cquity instrument of another
entity. Trade receivables issued are initial ly recopnised whenthey are originatied. All other finuncial assets and financial linbilities are inftial Iv
recognised when the Company becomes u party to the contractual provisions of the fnstrument.

A) Financial assels

fivitient recomition il memueinsg
A finaneinl asser (except trade receivithle und CORECT assel) s recopnised initially gt fuir vilye plies or minus s fransaction cost thas are
directly attribuable w tie wequisition of issue of financial assels (other than financial assets ot (i vatlue through profit and Joss).

I'ransaction costs direcily anributable o the acquisition of financlal assets or francial liubilities ot fair value theough Profit o loss
FFVTPL b dre recopmised immedinely in the Standilone Stutement of Profit and Lioss,

Cluseification and subsequent measirement

Chs nitial eecognition, o financial ssset is clssified as measired il
= mortisel cost

< FYOCT — equity investment: o

- FVTPI

Fimancial assets are pot reclisified sibsegiient (o their inital revognition, except i nnd in the period the Company changes its
business mode! for managing fipancial nsses,

A fitancial ssset is measured atamortised cost ifi tmeets both of the ollowing conditions and is gt designoted as at VTP
the fsset is held within o business model whose objective is to hold assets 1o collect contractual cash fows: and
the contractual ferms of the financil nsse glve rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that wresolely payvments of principal ond
intenest on the pringipal amount vutstungling,

Al equity Tmvestments in scope of Ind AS 109 g measured ot foir value, Fquity instruments which are hebd for teading clussified as
FVTPL. For all nther equity instruments, th Company imuy make an irrevoeable clection to Present subsequent changes in the fudr value
i other comprebensive incomg (designated s FVOUT — equity investment), The Company mukes such election on an instrument-by -
instrment basis. The clyssification is made on initial recopnition ond is irmeyneahle.

IF the Company decides 1o classify an equity instrument s ot FVOCT, then ol fhir vitlue changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, dre recopnized in the other comprebensive ineome (*0C1), There | metrecyeling of the amounts from OCT 1 the Stundalone
salement ol Prolit andLoss, even on sale of invesiment However, the Company may tranaler the cumulative pain or Toss within
LY,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPI CHERIrY dre meosured ot fair value with gl ehanges recognized in the Standalone
Statement of Profic ond Loss.

All finunclal assets non classilied as medsered o amontised cost or FVOCT as described ahove gre mensured al FVYTP,

Fir purposes of subsequent measurement, financinl assets are classified fn following cateeories:
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Flwancial gusety of ermortised vost

Ihese assets wre subsequently measured ot amortised cost using the effective interest method, The amortised cost is reduced by impairmint
osses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recogrised in profit or loss. Any guin or loss on
dereconition is recognised in the Standualone Statement of Profit and Loss,

Fitemniend assets of FI'TPY
I hessr assets e subsequently measured at fair vilue, Net gnins mnd losses, including any mierestinetme, ane recognised in e
Standaline Statemient of Profie and Logs,

Eteity pvesements ar 1O
Hhese asscts are subsequently measueed 81 fale villue, Other net gitlns and losses are recopnised in OCT and are not reclassifed 1o prodit

or loss,

Faperivmnenst of fimeneial assets
Fxpected crodit loss (ECL ) is the difterence between all centractzal cosh Mows that are due o the € ommpumy i aeevrdince with the contract
and all the cash fMlows thaf the enlity expects o receive (el cush shorttalls), discounted w the original IR,

In secordance with Ind AS 109, (he Compuny applies expected eredit loss (ECLY model for messurement and reeognition ol

impairment loss on the following financial assets und credit riskesposure:

{a) Financial nssets that are messured at umortizell cost e deposts, trade receivables and bunk balance.

(b} Financial ssets that are measured u a1 PO

(€} Ledss regefvables under Ind AS 116

() Trude receivahlos or any contractual fight t receive cash or anther financial asset that resultfrom transuctions tha une within the
scope ol Ind AS 115

The Company follows “simplified approsch” for recegnition of fmpatement loss ulloswance on T il recoivables,

The application o simplified approach does not require the Company o track chunges in eredit sk, Ruther. it recogtires impoimeni
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs of cach reporting dute; right fiom its infifal recognition.

Fusr recopnition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there hios
hesn o stpninicant fnenstse in the eredit risk sinee initial recognition. 1 eredit risk has not neresed significantly, 12-month ECL is
wsed to provide for Impoirment loss. However, 17 eredit tisk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL i3 used, If, ina subseguent period.
eredit guatity of the Tnstrument improves such that there 14 no longer a significant increase fn credit risk sinee initial recognition.
ther the enrity reverts 10 recogmizing impairment loss allowanee based on 2-month ECL..

Litetime ECL ore the expected credit losses resulting from all possible delauli events over the expected life of u financial assel, The [2-
month FCL s a portion of the litetime ECL which resalis from defilt events that are passible within 12 months afier the reparting date.

FUL impairment foss allowanee (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized s income! expense in the Standalone
Sttt of Prodit and loss. EC1 for Anancial assets mesured s at dmaortized cost and contractual revenui receivables is presented as an
al i srice, fe., o5 an integral part of the mepsurcment of those asdits in the Standalone statement of assets and Lisbilities. The allowares
reduces the net ey ing amount, 1niil the asset meets write-olT erfteria, (he Company dises not reduce impoirment allvwance fFom the
E£ross ey ing amouni,

The Company does aot have any purchased or vriginated credit impaired {POCT financial assets, fe., financial asseis which are eredit
impuired on purchpse origination,

The Compuny derecognizes i financial gsset when the contrctial rights W the cash Mows from the fnanclal asset expire, or it ransfers
the rights 10 receive the contractual cash Nlows i dtramsaction in which substantially all of'ihe risks and rewards ol wwarership of the financial
Asget are transferred or inwhich the Company neither translers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewatds of ownership and
oes ot retaln contral of the financial sseer
I ihe Company enters into transaetions wherehy it transfiors ussorg reeognlred ob s Standalo e
TN !
i !

Lement of ussets und FHabilities
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Elin Appliances Private Limited
Material Accounting Policies
(Ameonnt in INR million, wnless otherwize sarteef)

but retains cither all or substuntially a1l af the risks and rewards of the transterred assets, the runsfirred ussets are ot derecognized,

b)) Financial liabilities
fttdad pecognition and LT Es a i)

All finanelal Vabilities are recounised initinlly ut i vadue and. i the ease of Joans anil bermowings and payahles, netoldirectly attrburable
RIS ON Coats,

Mufweguent weqsrvmen
Phe mensurement of financial liahilities depends on their chssification, as desciibed hefow:

L} Finaneial liabilities at fajr value through profii or loss
Phe Company has not desionated amy Ananclal Habilitics ot FVTPL.

tii) Finanein! liabilitics ot amortsed cist

Alter initial recognition, Louns, borrowings, trade payables and ther financial libilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cusl using the ETR method, Interest expense is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profitand loss. Any galn or loss on derceognition
i sy recogrized in the Smndalone statement of Praffit and Joss,

Derecognition of fimancial fabilitiey

A financial Hahility is dereeognized when the obligation under the Hahility s dischurged or cancelled or expires, When an existing
finnncial lahiliny 3 replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Hability ane
substantially modified, such an exehange or modificarion s treated s the derecognition of (he original liuhility and the recophition of o

few lighility, The difference in the respective carrying amounts fs reécognlsed in the Swndalone Statement of Profit nne Jose,

€)  Reclussilication of fnancial assets mmd linbilities
The Company detiermines classifeation of financiyl assets und liabilities on initial recognition. Afler imitial recognition, no reclassification is
madde for lnancial assels which ane cquity instruments-and financial lighitities, For financial nssets which are debt Instrumenits, o
rechissitication & made only iFthere s o changs in the business maodel e mansng e nssets,

d) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financil usscts and financial labilities are offsel. and the net amount ix reported in the Standalone statemtent of assers and lakilities
iFthere is ooeurrently entoreenble contractual kegal right 10 offser the recognived amaunts ond there is an intention w settle on o pel
Pasis, o renlize the assets and setile (i Hubillies sim ulinneously,

L0 Fair value mensuremeni
The Company measunes Tnancial instrumients af fir valie al cach reporling periog,

Far value s the price that would be recefved 1 sell an asset or paid o transfer a Liahility inan ordeelviramsaction between market participanis
08 the measurement date, The fair value messtiemin i hased on the peesumption that the transaction to sell the assel or trinsfer the linbiliy
Lakits plave efiher:

* o Inthe principal market for the asser o Hubility, or
* mthe ahsence of a principal market, in the mist aefvantugeous market for the gsset op Hability, the principal of the most odvantagenis
ket must be aceessible b the Comipuny:,

e prineipal ar the most advantageous market must be iecessible by the Campany,

The Tair value uf an assel or g liahility s measured using the assumptions that murket purticipants would use whien pricing the nsseq or [Tability,
assuming that marke! participants aet in their econemic host interest,

A i value medsurement of & non-financial assel fakes into pecount a market participant's ability 1 penerate economic henefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use o by selling it to another market participant thut would use the usset in irs highest and hest use,

The Company wses: valuation technicques tha are appropriste in the carcumstances and for which sufTicient data are available 1o medsure faip
vitlte, maximizing the usie ol rélevint ohservihlo inputs and minimizing the use ol umobservahie inpuss:

T




Elin Appliances Private Limited
Material Accounting Policies
(Amomt it INR million, wnlesy otherwise stated)

ALl nssers unad Tinhilivies for which (aiF vilie Is mensired of disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements are categorized within the fuir
value hierurchy, described as follows. bused on the lowest level input that is signiticant to the fair value measurement gs o whole:

* Level 1:guated (unadjusted) masket prices in active markets for identical assets or labilitics

¢ Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.¢. 25 prices)
orindirectly {ie, derfved rom prices).

= level 3 inputs for the assetor lability that are not based on observable market data [unobservable inpuls),

For assets and Habilities that are recognized in the Standalone Finunciul Statements on u recurring basis, the Company delermines whether
transders e ocourred between levels in the hierarchy by ne-issessing calegorizntion (based on the lowest levie] input thist s significant o
the lidr value messurement as o whale) ut the end of cach repriting period,

Ixtermal valuers are involved for valustion of sianificant wscts and liehilitis, if'wny, At esch reporting date. the Company analyses the movements
i the vilues of assets and Habilities which ore required 10 beremensured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies.

For the purpose of Tair vadue disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assels und liohilities on the basis of the nuture,
characteristics and risks of e asser or lability and the level of the falr vilue hivrarchy as explained above, This note summaries
acedunting policy or the fuir value, Other fair value related diselosures g given in mole 44,

117 GST Credin
Ihe GST credit available on purchase of rw materials, other uligible inputs and cupital goods is adjusted againgt taves payuhle, The
uttadjusted GST credit b shown under the head “Other Current Assets™,

LI8 Earnings per share

Tasie camingslossh per share are caleulated by dividin i the net profil(loss) for the year atribotable w equity shareholders by e wetehivd
average aumber of equity shurcs outstanding during the vear. The wel ghied average number of equily shares outstunding during the period
= adjusted for events offssnus issue and share sphit, For the purpese of calculating diluted camings: (loss) per share, the et profit or loss for
tir period attributible 1 cquity shaeholders and the wetighted average number ol shares wutstanding during the veur are adjusted for il effieet
af all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shires
bewn aenaily isswed ot fir vadue (e, the average mirket value of the owstunding equity shares). Dilutive potentinl equity shares are deemed
convented asof the beginning of the period, unless lssued at o laterdute, Dilutive petential equity shares are determined independent] y for
cach period presemed, The number of equily shares and patential dilitive equity shares are adjusted retraspectively for all periods presented (e
any share splits and bonus shares issues including for ehanges efMected prior te the approval of the Standalone Financial statements by
the Board of Directirs:

L9 Segmend reporting
Dperating segments sre reported in & manner consistent with the inernal reporting provided 1o the chief operating decision maker, The
bourd of directors of the Company has been identified as heing the chiel operuting decision muker by the Munugement of the Company,

Uhe husiness of the Company fialis within o single line of business i.c. electronics munufacturing services: All other activiies of the
Company revalve around it nain business, Honee, no siepardte reporlahle primory segment,

LI Goovernment granis
Lirangs from the government are recognized ot their fair value where there 15 8 reasonable ussurance that the graril will be received and
the Company will comply with ol stipulated conditions, Government grants relating o income are deferred and recognized in the
rofit or loss aver the period nevessary o minch them with the costs thist they are intended 1o compensate and presented within ather
aperating income. Grants related o pssets are reduced from the carrying umount of the asset. Such grants are recognized in the
Standalone Sttenient of Profit and Loss over the usetul |ife of the related depreciable nsset by way of reduced depreciation charge,

221 Stmmilalone Statement of Casl Flows
The Standalune stalements of cash Mows s mude using the indireet matbod, whereby profit befisee iy s adjusted for the effects of ransactions
O mon-cash nature, any delerral scerualy of past or future cash receipts or payments and item of income or expense associated with investing or
Fnancing of cash Aows, The cosh Mows from operuting. finuncing and investing activities of the Company are segregated.
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Material Accounting Policies
fAmaouni ie INR million, wnless otherwise stated)

122 Significant acconnting estimates and judgments

P estimutes used in the preparation of the Stndatone Financial Statements of each period/year presented ane continusously evaluated by
the Compuny and are based on historical experienceand various other assum picns und factors (including expectations of future events), that
the Company helieves i be reasonahle ander the existing clreumstances, The said estimates are hased on the facts und cvents, that existed
i a the reperting date, or that oceurned after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing a3 af the reporting date,
Mihough the Company replarly assesses these estimates, petual results could differ materfally from these estimates - even i the
assumptions underlying such estimates were reasomable when made, i1 these results differ from historical experience ar other essumptions do
not wm out to be substantially sccurnte. The chunges in estimates e recegnized in the Standalone Financial Statements in the periad
i which they become koo,

Phie kiey ussumptions concerning the future and other kv sources of estimation uncertuinty ol the reporting date, that have & sipnificant risk
of eussing iomaterial adjustment to the carrying ameounts ofsssets and Habilities within the et fimancial vear, are described below. Actual resulis
couhd B from these estimates,

« cftwwvarces for ancoffecied frude recefrables
Prade veceivables do ot gy interest and are stated at their nominal values o reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
et wee s on agelng of the recebvable balances and historical expericnces. Individual trmde receivables are written off when
riameemant deems msl becollectible,

= Confnpeoiey
I the sormad eourse of business, continpent labilities muy arise from litigation and other elajms against the Company, There are certuin
ahligntions which managements have concluded based on all avaitable ficts and circamstinees are not probable of pavment or difficult
b quisntity reliably and such ohligations are treaed s contingent linbilities mel disclosed in notes Althotgh there can be no asserunee of
the fial duteome of fegal proceedings in which e Company s involved. it s nol expected that such contingencies will bave material effect
e it fimascial positivn of probabil i,

* dmpairment of other finaneial assets
The impeairment provision Lor fnancial assets are hased on assumplions about risk of default and espected luss ratee. The Company usey
Judgement in making these wsumptions and selecting the inputs 1 the impalment ealeulation., hased o the Company’s past hisiory,
exhating murket coditions ss wellus forward looking estimutes at e end of v reporting period.

* Taxey
Uineertsintics exist with respect to the interpretation ol comples tax regulaltions, changes in s faws, and the smoont and timing of future xihle
mepme: Kifven the natere of business difTerences eriging. batwevn the petual vesults wnd the assumptions made, or future chanpes 1o syely
asstmpions eould necessitute future ndjustments 10 1% ineome wnd expense already recorded. The Compuny establishes current fax
Payable, based on rensonable cstimates: The smount ofsuch current gy payable is bosedon varous fretors, such as experience of previous
ta aielivs and differing imterpretations: of wx repulations by the taxuble entity and the responsible mx authority. Such differcnces of
inlerpretation may arise ona wide variety ol issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the domicile of the Company.

* Kecowerability of deferved fuxey
In assessing the recoverabiTity of deferred tox assets. management considers whether it is probable that tvable peafit will be available
dgmingt which the lasses cun be utilized. The ultimate realizution of deferred f wssets is dependent upen the genertion of future taxable
Income during the perinds in which the temporary differences become dealuctible,
Delerned i asets are recognized for tnused tax losses 10 the extent that it i probable that wsableprofit will be available against which
thet losses e be wiilieed. Significint Mmahagement judgementis required o determine the amount of defared s fssety thar can be
recopnized, based upon the kely timing und the tevel of fitare taxablo profits iogether with future tx plunning strategics,

fmpatrment of wen-financial assets

Iepairmient exists when the earrving value of an assel o cish generating unit exceeds {18 recoverable smount, which is the higher of fis fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use, The fair vitlueless costs ol disposal cal culation is bused on availuble dats from biatcling sitley
transactions. conducted ot srm's length, e similar assets or observable markel prices |ess incrementil ::USIH:_T_EJ_Q disposing o the asset, The

valie in use caloulation s based on o Discounted Cash Flow D) modie], i
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fAmoamt in INR million, unfess otheriive siated)

Mgmiffcant eatimales

= Defioed benefit plans
The costs of post-retirement benefit oliligaion are determined using actuarial valuations, An setuarial valution involves making various
assumptions thot may differ from nctual developments in the fiture, These inclide the determinution of the discount rate; future salary
inereases and mortality mtes. Due @ the complexities imvolved in the valuation and fis long-term pature, 3 defined benefit ohligation is
highly sensitive 1o changes in these assumptions, Al assumptions are reviewed at cuch reporting date,

Uil fives of properey, plant and equipment amd fntangible aysem

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives ol property. plant and equipment and intungible assets al the end of each reportin o perio,
AL the end of the current reporting period, the monasesient determined that the wseful Fyves of property. plant znd equipment and intangible
ussets at which they are currently being deprecinted represent the correct estimate of the lives imd need no change

Lewses - Estimating the focrementol borrowing rare

e Company canno readily determine the nterest rate implicit in thie lease, therefore, it uses fts Incremental borrowing rate (*IBR")
o measare bease Habititles, The 1BR is the raie of interess thar the Compuny would have to pay to borrow over o similar term. and with a
similir security, the funids necessiry to obtain an asset of o similar value t the righl-of-use usset In a similar economic environment,

Breterinfning the fease ternr of contracts with renevnd mid termiation aftians — Campany as ey

The Compuny determines the leise erm as the non-cancellable term of the lease. together with any periods covered by an option 10 extend
the lesse iFit §s reasonably certain o be exercized, or any periods covered by v prtion do termirste the lease, 3t is reasonahly certaln ot
o B excreised,

Ihe Company B lease contracts that include extension and termination opticns. The Company applies judscment in évalusting whether
it is ressonably certain whether or w0 exercise the option 1 renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all velevant fadtors that create
am economic incentive for it to exéreise either the renewal or terminition, After the commencement dute, the Company reassesses the lease term
T there is @ signiticant event or chunge in circumstances that is within its control and affects fis ahility w exercise or 1ot 1o exercise the
DN [ TEnew oF o lerminate &g, construetion ofsignlficant lesehold improvemetits or sipnificant customlation 1o the leasad assel).

Fadr vty orasrement of finandal erminens

When the fair values of Anancial assets and fnancial linbilides reconded in the Stumndidone stitement of pssets-and fubilities carinol e
mensured based on guated prives in dctive markets; thels Gir value i medsurod using valustion teehniques, The inputs 1 these models are
tahien fom observable markiets whene possible, but where this s not feasible. a degre ofjudaement is required in establishing: falr values.
udgements inchadi considerations of inputs such a3 liguidit ¥ risk, credit risk and volatilisy, Changes [ assumptions ahow these fetors could
affeet the reparted fair value of financial instrumente,

-

Wirrrimties

Al each balance sheet dute, basis the management judgmen. changes in fcts aml legal aspects. the company sssesses the requirement of
pervisicns against the ontstanding worranties. However. the uetisl future autcome iy e dlifferent fram management’s estimales, Producs
warmnty liability and wireinty expenses are recorded it 1he cliims of the customers under wirrenty one probuble wnd the gmount cun he
redsonably estimated

113 Exceptinnal lems

Exesptional itemis refer o items of income or expense within the statement of profic and loss from ardinary sctivithes, which e
men-recuring and ane of sueh size, nature o incidence thar their sepurate diselosure s considered necessary to explain the
performmnce of the Company.,

{This space das boeir Ditentionally left Blank)
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ELIN APPLIANCES PFRIVAILE LINMILED
Niites b Stamidalone Financil Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
FH crnreseennts coee for IV NS oms, wnless offieee g sieted)

i

Capital work-in-progress

Partivulars Total
Balnnce as at April 1, 2022 i1,
Aaliitioms 0,41
PHspasitls '“-U{'I
Balance oy af Mareh 31, 2023 091
Ao -
Disnosals (0.91)
Balance us at March 31,2024 )
4.0 Capital work-in=progress ageing schedule

IPariiculars Less than | vear 1-2vears 2 -3 years Maore than Total

r 3 vears

Hilines as a0 Morch 31, 2023 {14 - . = 09l
Balinee as al March 31, 2024 = - - - -

4.2 B the vear eided March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, there are no caplital work-in-progress projects whose completion is overdue or has

eweceded the cosl kassd on |.I|'I'|'|Tﬂ"-4."l.’ j'll-IiFI-

Mun-Current Investments & Investment in Holding company

Particulars

Asal Asat
Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unaunted Investments (At Cost)
Investment i Eguilty Instraments

il ing £ somprany 17.34 17.34
Unguoted vguity shares
Invesimenis - Non-Trade
Investments m Equity insiruments 0,74 0.
Toinl 1808 18.08
A lvestment in Halding Company
Pl Face value per Eiimn Electronics Lid.
share (s, ) Mo, of Shares Amount
bisvestment in Equity Instruments - Equity Shares
A Murch 31,2023 5= 1734000 [7.34
Aol Maorch 31, 2024 3= 734, 00000 1734
Sl Betail of Non-Current Investments
Particulars Shivalik Waste Muanazement Pyt Total Amott
Mo, of Shares Ammouni
Finaneial nssets menasured at FVTOC]
(ih Investment in equily instroments - Equity
Shares (Fully paid up)
vsoar Mareh 31, 20123 2400.000 0,74 0,74
As ol Morgh 31, 202X 2L .74 .74
B Addition] Disclasures:
Particulirs ARl o
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
hpercpate carrying volue of unquored investments- Holding Company 17.34 17.4
e wiryving value of unguoted investiments- Cihers 0.74 .74
s prmonmt of fnpaicment in vilue of mvestnents - 5
L. Additional details of Holding Company
Platge off

Mg af Eofiy

Prioncipal Activity imeorporation and

principal busingss

Elin Blectronics Limited

Manufacturing of Elecirie Components, Motors & India

Compaonents Parts

L Investiments ot fair value throagh €1 {fully paid) reflect investment in ungquoted equity secoritics

Iese equity shares ane désipnated as

W T s they aee not held (or trading parpose and ore not in similar line of husiness as the Company. Thus, disclosing their fair value

Huctuatzon fn profit or Joss will pon retlect the purpose of holding,

8.3, For Dhviddend Income. nefer nole 25




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Saotes io Standulone Financial Sttements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(AR smncigstds v i ENE ST, pidexy onfernise stated)

o Dither Noo-current Financinl Assels

Particilars

As at As al
March 31, 2024 Mureh 31, 2023

Unsecured, Considered Good and messured of amortised cost wiless

otherwise stated

Bank deposits with mute than 12 months moturgy = (12 12
Interest Hoceivahle LR k.0
Security Deposil .56 056

T avtal 01,65 LE

Ahowe hark, deposits are held a5 margm money/securitios with harkes,

P ferred mamme ty reflect the ver ey effecs of temporary dilference betwegn the
reperng purpses i ihe reporting date. Significant eompone

Preleered tay assets  (Tiabilities) (net) - (refer note 41)

Ly bases of nasets and lohilities wnd hetr carrying wmounts fof (Tnimelal
nt o the Company 'y tet defermed s are os follows-

Defined benefit  Property, st Provisions &

i nhﬂgillun and equipment ofthers Total
At (FD April, 2022 .53 (18.0d) 317 {1d.64)
FC hmped 1V Credited

< 1o Statement ol profi wmd loss {0.18) i 1 {41y (4 .65)

tiv eher comprehensive ncome 0,23 = - {123

Mo ol 30 Mawch, 2023 (&% (2274} LT6 {18040
(Chaegeed ) Credited

= To Stafensent of proficad loss |98 (3.6%9) 106 {1655

< 1 other comprrehensive income (2.02) - = (2.02)
vt 31 Mareh, 2024 84 (26.43) 152 (221N

8 Oher Nou-C urrent Assels
Asat st

Particulaes

Murch 31, 2024 Alurch 51, 2023

I mswwaired, Considered Gond

Lapi Addvimies

I3 4u 31 5

Fisinl

13.40 31.94%

Includies pavmient of Rs 1207 Mn (PY Rs 1297 Moy made for allodwsent of Land, Land hos heen sllomed bot

campany s peiding

T Amvemtories (al eost or nel realisalile vl e whichever is lower)

Fartbeulury

Asat Azt
Misrech 30, 2024 March 31, 2023

baventiries { As Certificd and valued by the pnsgr e el

R Moterinks 13228 |29, 14
e Mhipteruls s transi Sf).02 5,657
182,30 135.86

Woork-m-progness 3061 21344
Faiiahud pownils 2380 5175
Stiies amid Sparcs | 32 156
Tanlul 13503 21160

Praenng the venr ended Mareh 31, 3024 Bs, (3,58 Mn IMarch 31, 2023 Bs Niljw

k\fr'\

.}’

# R
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possession and repisteration in the name of

aerecognised s o expenses for imventories vilued ar nel relissable value



ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Standalone Financinl Statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2024
A rennes are i INE Millions, andess atbervise stoned

10

Current Financinl Assets - Investments

Particulars

As As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Ooted Tnvestments

[nvestments in Mutual Fands .00 4.59
Totul 4.90 4,59
Detail of Current Financial Assets - Investments
As at Asal

Particulars

March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Financial assets carried at fair value through statement of profit or loss (FVTPL)
tvestments in mutual funds - OQuoted Tnvestment

HIIFC Group Unit Linked Plan Option B

Tostarl Corvent Investments at FVTPL

Agaregate book value of quoted investments
Agpregate market value of guoted investments
Ageregate amount of impairment in value of investments

Trade Receivables { Carried at amortised cost)

Particulars

4.90 4.59

4590 4.59

4,90 4.59

4.5 4.5
As at As al

Maureh 31,2024 Mareh 31, 2023

I'rade Receivahles

L msecured, considered good 6f.40) 580.1%
Iracle Receivables - credit impaired (.70 (.58
Less; expected credil loss allowance (0707 ((.58)
Total 696,40 S80.15
Movement in the expected credit loss allowanee of trade receivables are as follows:
Falance at the Beginning of the vear (.58 0.60
Adel: Prowided during the year .12 (0.02)
Lesss Amount written of! - =
Balanee at the end of the year 0.70 0.58
Impairment Allowanee (allowanee for bad and doubiful debis)
Unsecured, conzidered good -
Frade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk - -
Trife Receivables « credit imipaired 0,70 0.58
0.70 .55
11.0 Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule ;
Asat As it

Partivalars

March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Uiiilisputed Trade recelvables — considered good

MW e 001,34 ST3.56
Less than & months 606 4.58
& months - 1 vear - (.01
I =2 years - -
23 yenrs - B
“ore than 3 vears . E
Tatal 606,40 S80.15
Undisputed Credit impaired
Mot Dus 0,60 (L35
Less than 6 months .10 001
& months - 1 yvear -
| -2 yenis . =
R [ - 3
hore than 3 vears - = 3
Tutal 4 “ 0.70 0.58
Tatal Trade Receivable 697.10 S50.73
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AN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
PAN comanmis ave i INE Al ons, anfexy atherivive stated)

1.2 There are no disputed balances of Trade Receivables as at March 312024 and Mareh 312021,

11,3 No trade receivable or advances are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any
other person. Trade or other receivable due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a parter, a
director or o member is disclosed in Note 36,

14 Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms of 45 to 60 danys.

115 There is no outstanding receivable form Related partics as on Marh 31, 2024 and March 31. 2023

Cush & vash eguivalents

Particulars As at As at
Muarch 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Balunee with banks in current accoun| - 0.06
Chegues, drafts on hand: - .01
Lash on hand; 0.14 .06
Tatzal 014 0.13

Oiher Bank Balances

As al As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2022

Farticulars

Balanves with Bank
- Deposit with banks (Original maurity more than three months and less than twelve months * 031 3

Lotal 0.31 -
* Above Bank deposits ure held s margin money with banks,

Other Current Finaneinl Assets (Carried at amortised cost)

Particilairs Asal As al
March 31,2024  Muarch 31, 2023

Lnsecured, considered pood and measured al amortized cost unless
olherwise stated
Loans & Advances (o Stff & Workers# .68 1.7%

Toinl .68 1.78

*Interest free loan and advance given to Staff and Workers and period of repavment is less than one year.

Other Current Asseis

Partieulnrs As ai As at
Mareh 31,2024 Murch 31, 2023

Unsecured, considerad good

Balance with Govermment Authorities 6,45 7.69
Girotuity fund balance {refer note 32) 26,55 19.84
Advance ww Supplicrs 15,35 11z
Export Incentive receivables 0.m .02
Prepaid Expenses .52 087

Tuiul 4918 38.64

“Export Incentive is recoverable in relation to the export of goads, There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached o
tltese mrants.
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ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Lo Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amonnts gre in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1i

AL Share Capital
(i) Authorised Share Capital

Equity Share Capital

Particulars No of Shares Amount
As at April 011, 2022 200,000 2.00
Increase during the vear - -
As at March 31, 2023 2,03, 041 2.0
Increase during the vear - -
As at March 31. 2024 2,010,000 2.00

(i) Shares issued, subseribed and fully paid-up

Equity Share Capital

Particular

Mo of Shares Amouni
Asat April 01, 2022 2,000, 00y 2.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
Less: Share bought back during the vear - -
As al March 31, 2023 2,010,000 2.00
Add: Shares issued during the vear = -
Less: Shire bought back during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 200,000 2.00

{iii} Terms/right attached (o Equity Sharcs

Ihe Company has one class of shares having o face value of Rs, 10/ per equity share. The company declares and pay dividends in
mdian rupees. The dividend proposed by the board of directars is subject to the approvals of the shareholders in ensuing Annual
Cieneral Meeting, Each holders of equity shares is entitled to one vote pur equity share held in the Company. On winding up of the
Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company. remaining after distribution of
all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

(iv) Detnil of shareholders holding more than 5 percent of Fquity Shares

: As at As at
Mame of Shareholder March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Elin Electronics Limited - Holding Company 2.00,000 200,000
tmeluding shares held by nominees) SO F U oM

iv) Diselosures af Slmrelmltling of promolors

Shares held at March 31' 2024 % Change during
Nos. of Shares % of Total Shares the year ended
Mar 31' 2024

Promoter Name

Elin Electronies Limited 200,000 TG0 000 -




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Standalone Finaneial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

el ety e i INR M ons, andess otherwive siaredd)

B. Other Fguity

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2023
1) Hetained Carnings T728.64 TIL10
(1) Securities Preamium 13.50 1350
(i General Reserve 4.50 450
tivi Components of Other Comprehensive Income
i, Changes in fair value of FVOCT equity instruments (1,54 .54
I Bemeasurement of delined benefit plans 20,18 14,17
l'otal T67.36 Td6.81

Mature and Parpose of Reserve

. Securities premium s used 1o record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for Hmited purposes such
as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013,

b. General reserve is the free reserve created out of the retained earnings of the Company. The reserve is utilised in accordunce
with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013,

¢. Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (zain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes
that will not be reclassified o Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Retained Earnings

Particulars Amount

Asal April 01, 2022 6G55.89

Addd: Net profit for the vear 58.21

Less: Transfer to reserve during the vear -

As ad Mar 31, 2023 Ti4.10

Addd; Net profie for the vear 14.54

As at March 31, 2024 728.64

(i) Ohther Reserves

Particulars Securitics General
Premivm Reserve

Asal April 0, 2022 13.50 4.50

Increase during the vear -

Decrease during the vear - .

Asal March 31, 2023 13.50 4.50

Increase during the vear - -

[ecrease during the year - -

Asat March 31, 2024 1350 4.510

(i) Components of Other Comprehensive Ineome

Changes in {air
€ vilue Hemeasurement of

Particulars FFVOLCT r
ik * i i“lmm:::"} defined benefit plans
Asat April 1, 2022 0.38 14.85
Ineremse during the vear 016 {(LGR)
Decrease during the vear - =
As al March 31, 2023 (.54 14.17
[nerease during the vear - .41
Decrense during the vear = -
As al March 31, 2024 0.54 20.18
b .,.”-"- L ; #‘:__—
L 1% A
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FLIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Sates (o Standalone Financial Statements Tor the vear ended March 31, 2024
{10 emrenarnts dire f0 ENR VW ons, widfess othernize stoted)

17 Non-Currenl Provisions

T As al Asal
Hrpsiers March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Employes Benefits (reler nole 37)
Provision lor compensated ohsenecs - 141
Tustal - 1.41
I8 Current Borrowings
— Asal As at
A March 31,2024 Mareh 31,2023
S umortised cost
Borrowings - Loans repayable on demands
Sevuredl
E10 fromm bunls - Working Capital 10747 131.53
Tutul 107.47 131.83

Males:

o Working Capital lown of Company is secured by First pari puasu charge by way of moriguge of all Immovable Propertics of Company
situnfed or Belikhol. Tehsil halagoarh, Districy Solun, Himachal Pradesh and hvpotheeation of Planl & Muchinery, Equipments, Tools, Spares,
“ecessinies and all other Assets. both present and in futere, The Loan is further secured by Personal Gumronice of the two diteetors of the
b, The Company has ovailed working capital loan from CIT1 Bank and 1ICICI bank i repayable on demand bearing 1 Mloaling Interest rate on

TCICT Brank Loan MOLR 3M = Spread o 0003% (Effective Rare 8. 70%) and Fixed interest rute on CIT1 Bank loan @ 88350,

¢ The Company his satisfied all the covenants preseribied in terms of borrowings
o Phe Company his ool detoolied on any laons pay nble.

Frade Pavables (Carried ai amorlised cost)

Particulnrs

Adal
March 31, 2024

As al
March 31, 2023

Traie Pavables

Fotal Chatstanding Dues of Mioro and Small Emerprizses (refer note 33) 8640 95,77
botal Oistonding Dues of Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 33579 200,13
Tatal 422.19 255.910
1L Teade Payables Ageing Schedule, on due basis:
Al i Asal

Particukars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Total Cutstanding Dues of Micro and Small Enterprises

Bl e H4.43 90,87

[ess than | vear 1.97 4.490)

I -2 viears - -

e e [ £ =

More than 3 yeurs U =
Tatal 86.40 85.77

Futal Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises

ki)

St D 28090 170.0%

s than 1 vetir 336 2973

I <2 neors {1.01 .32

2 -3 vears .26 -

Oeliare thun 3 vieurs 5 ;.
Tatal 335.79 2013

1.2 There are no disputed halances of MSME or other thin MSME as on Mar'24 and Mar23

193 Trade Pasvable are non-inlerest bearing and are pormally setthed on 60 days terms.

0.0 There Tsno trade payuble Lo related parties; P

-y 3 "I_:__.r\l_?.'.“ ',,. )
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ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED

MNuotes to Standalone Finnnelnl Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(A aorimimirts e fi IR WETTons, desy oiflerwive stated)

20 Quher Current Financial Liahilities

Bt
LE¥)

Partieulars il Asat
e March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Emplosee Benefit puyohle 1120 1389
Toval 11.20 13.89
X Curvent Tox Assets / Linbilities
P As at As at
Fartivolars
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Current Tax Assels
Ml anew Ineome Tas © TS (net of provisions) 0.81 L
Current Tax Liabilities
[nemme Tax Provisions {net of Advance lncome Tax £ TS & 238
Cher Current Linbilities
Axal As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Yelvances from Customers®
Stutugory Brues pavahle

Total

.04 :
.91 270
7.95 290

"ol b be supplied in the next financial vear,

23 Current Provisions

Partivulars

As at
Mareh 31,2024

A al
March 31, 2023

Provisions for Emplovee Benefiis

Prowision for compensated absences (refer noke 323 335 2.08
Provision - (M hers? 2 2.50
Fotal 585 4.58
Flochuded provision forsales refited obligations
Chunges in peovisions (O wreent and Non Current) are as helow ;
Particulirs Provision Tor Provision -
com pensited Others®
absences
vs ol April 12022 129 -
wabidition during the veur {186 230
Uliifisation © reversal during the vear {065 s
Asal March 31, 2023 349 .50
Y ilditiom during the vier 0.28 -
I tilisation ©reversn] during e veur (0.42] 2
As al Mareh 31, 2024 335 250
. : e "4-‘ 4 -}:-E i 1.-_ 4
e \ r{":?}"’f B 0k
{ Aok ff JE )
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ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
NWodes o Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
i oty gire fn IR AT ans, indess otheriise statee)

24 Hevenue from aperatinons

e For the vear ended  For the year ended
s March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Sule of Products 2,389,842 2AGE. A
Sale or Seevices 106 240
Other Operating Revennes
= merup sake 288 343
Fapor Incentives o -
Tustal 239377 2,504.29
24.1 Contravl Balanees
Reveivithles. which are Included in “trude receivables™ G, 40 580,15
il inees rodeived trom customers .04 -
242 Pisageregated inflormation by primary geographical market
St ot below is the Disagprepntion of the compam's revenue Trom contraels with customers
L.eatsnm
Irafic 239340 250429
Anunside India .34 LW
Notal revenue from contracts with customers® 2.393.76 2.504.29
* Eseluding export incentives
24 Tiwing of revenue recopnition
Ciowids Trunaferred nt g point of time 2.392.70 2.501.89
Servive trmnsberred over time 1.06 240
Revenue Mrom contracts with customers® 2,393.76 2.504.29
2 Senomt below is the amount of revenoe recognised (rom
Smounts included In comret Hahilities at the beginning ol the vear - -
Perfirmanee obligations satistied in previous vedrs ‘ =
245 Reconeiling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with
the contracted price
[Revenae as per controted price 239378 250744
Adjustments
Provedsion for sales related pbligations - {2.500)
salies relum (0.0 (.64}
Revenue from contracls with customers® 2,393.76 2,50:4.29

Revenue Feom sale of goods is recognised on transier of conprol of goodds 1o the buyer. Revenue is measured at the price charged 10 the customer
el ane recorded net of returns (iF any), trade discounts, rebotes, other pricing alfowances to trade/consumer, when it is probable that the
asticiated coonomile benelits will Aow to the Group. Accomulated experience is used 1o estimate the scerals aned provisions for discounts and

relvites

e performance obligation in contracts is considered as fulfilled in accordance with the terms agreed with the respective customers, which is

miafnly upon arrival ot the customer

Revenie from sile of goads is presented net of Goods and Services Tax (GST),




FLIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Woles 1o Standalone Financial Statements far the vear ended Mareh 31, 2024
i ety gre B INR IS, unfess aghenvise stated)

15 (iher Income

For the year ended

For the vear ended

Farticulurs March 31,2024 March 31,2023
(Mher non-operating income
Tncome from investmenis
Interest Income from financial assets at amortised cost
Cin Fixed Deposits with Banks .04 003
[Vvidend Income LIT 177
Fabr walive gain on Financial mstruments at fir vialue through profil or loss {131 .17
oy om sl o carrent invesimenls measored ot FYTPL = 1,75
Miseellaneous Tocome 446 3.94
Forcign exchange fluctuation Galn (Net) .14 0.0
.68 6.72

Tl

20 Cost of Material Consomied

For the year ended

For the year ended

i H .

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
[nventories o the beginning of the year 129.75 127.50
Al 2 Purchiuses during the vear 2.014.25 2, 120,56

204400 214806
Fess: [nventory ot the end of the vear | B3.62 125,75
Total material eonsumed 1,960,138 2.118.31
27 Change in inventories of lnished goods, work-in progress and stock-in trade
. For the vear ended  For the vear ended
’ March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventories af the beginning of the vear
Finished Cioods 5L75 11.403
Wik in nrocess 2344 13.39
75.18 24.63
Leas: Inventory at the end of the vear
Findshesd Gonsds 23.80 31.75
Wiark 0 pirocess 3062 2344
M4l 75.18
Total 20,77 {50.56)
1% Emplovee Benefits Expenses
3 ¥ For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Salaries, wages, bonis ond allowanées 22101 206,96

Comtritnation w Provident and other Tands (Reler Note 32) 14.39 14,31

Corataity and oter defined benetit plans AR7 4.39

Sl weliore expenses A0 7.32

Tutal 244.37 213198




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

L areretneentn aire fer ANR A ieoms, iodess atherwise stared)

2 Finance Costs

Purticiabues For the year ended  For the vear ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Imterest expense on fnoneinl liabilities measured st amortised cost
i s s .24 1.07
~other Trlerest cos) 113 1.0
Chber borrowing cost 0.48 042
Total 385 1.53

A Oiher Expenses

31

For the yvear ended

For the year ended

Fiidihuils March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Power and Fuel Charges 802 I5,08
Carriage Inwards Expensis Ay 295
Processime Chirzes 17.73 2323
Consiimplion ol stores and spares 450 .59
Festing Calibration and Development Charpes 2.23 (.56
Bepairs and Maintenonee 20044 297
Advertisement & Sales promotion 0,08 052
Curriipe & Octroi {Outward ) .44 0,15
Rent R 0,51)
Iittes anel Taxes 0.74 .26
Pavments 1o Auditors

- Stututory Audit Fees (Including Limited review) 0.78% (b

= Tax Audit Fees L08 NEES

= (Mher Services (i 013

Chir ol Pocket expenses
Legal and Prolessional Fee [ .66 .53
Comimumnicaiion Cosis 0.77 0.7
Frisvelfing and Conveyance Expenses B2 8.37
YViehicle Running & Maintenance 250 2.8
lsuranee 285 258
Provision thr bod and doubtful debts 12 (.82)
Sitting Fees w non-executive directons (reler note 36) 01,06 -
Corparate Social Responsibility Expenses (refer nowe 38) .76 244
Met Loss  (Linind on Sale of Propery Plont and Eguipment .08 0340
Property. plant and equipment written ofT 16 -
Miscellaneous Expenditure 7.34 10.47
Total 95,38 102.85

Eurning per Share (EPS)

Furmings per share 5 caleulated by dividing the profit attritutable o the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of Equity Shares

ouistirding duting the veur. The numbers used in caleulating basic and diluted earings are stated below

Particulars

For the vear ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Basic & Ditoted Earnings per share -

Profin o f Livss ) for the vear |4.54 58.21
Profic /¢ Loss) anributable to ordinary shareholders [A) 14.54 5821
Wergisted average number of ordinary shores (B) 2,000,000 2,060,000
Fave value per Share Rs. 10y- Rs. 10y-
Firttings per share - Basic & Diluted {A/B) - Rs: TR0 291.03
zo- I g
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VLIN APPLIANTES PRIVATE LIYITED
Bt tn Stanilalone Finanelal Stabemenis for the year ended March 31, 2004
O e e e AR VS e e e g sl

A2 Wl gy bos piconprivsenl e Sellowimd smoumts in e Samdaloee Fiaacial Staemems s per Iid AS - |9 TEmployees Bengfi"

Al Uhelieel  umiribitinn Plan
ammitwision 10 Dofised ©oanibanon Plan, secopnised are charged o the Standolone Statesment of Profie and Loss for e vew o gnds

For the year ended  For the venr eniled

Phtic Mareh J1, 20124 Murch 31 2021

Uit p's £ enibrligtas Lo Brasielenr Fond mmed oibe | Refe Saee 15 (Al 11,5
rmplimer’s § oniremns o Feployes Seee insurnmes (Refer N 28) 102 204
L migilisos’s Comiliibaitiois 1o Mitkmal Panuon Schome {Rela Mode 201 L .37

i Dedined Henefir Plin

Tl Cimugrany s dedfined Pessefil oty plin Evely, enploy ee whis has comaplerad Eve years o o of service get a bl on depurtme at 18 decs salary (laat diawn salary | for encli
aotrapleted g ol strvice o et thergan m exoess 6f 6 montis. The compmmy makes contrehotions i the Elin Applionees Pyt Lid Employees Crraguity Trust The Trustees of Flim Applinnces P
L1 Emplncees Gty Truse@e respomsiie for e el povemanae of the plim ond 1o set i sceoedance with the frovisions of the tnost deed amd the relevant provisives prescevhed under the
i e cosrapibine mivss o habupr asiniil coberbimioin b the st rebstvely siable atalevel sucl that no sigmficon gup asises hetwes plin assins and Tnhbilities

Fhie eympboyees’ wranty Gl scheme 1 marsged by Kotak: Mahinde L Insumnce Compony: Lid, and Baga) Allang: Life Isamnce Ca. Lid wiich i b defined beaelit plan. The present valie of°
whibigirment bs desermmed tused om sctuarinl vsluotion wsing the Prajecied Lnet Cradit Methid, which recopises sscdi perind of service a5 grving meg o additional i of snployes hewoll)
autiifsuens ol mengeees each i separangly 10 baiild ap the final bl and tha obijsgive

e senpiosss ey e-engatiname scisme s mamped By TOFC Life (narmnse Company: Limined which i defined bensfit plun. The péssan value of shiigntion |s deienmined hased om sshorisl
wirlisive st thee Projeciad Ui Coadie Method aind |3 recopmisiad oo the basis o dlizible leave balances ol emplisyess a5 o valihion dee.

Actiarinl ssamyptinm

Parternbars Giranidiy {Fundel | Leave Encushment

March 3], 2034 March 31, 2013 Muprch 30, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unnizimpil e £ aeminm | pi | TAUN, TMy T Atin,
Arritlon ste A4 D"y R 4. 1% 4.00%%
Sty Ewsslatiom e LALLM S 00m, 5004 LI
A cinye retmihig wisidng losl of emplovees | Yeanrsi .. LR L] - =
ethicimen] age{ v | SR.00 REAL 5800 AHA0
Mlontalidy Rl TR ol EALM 2013, 1P ol TALM 302~ 1009 o TALM LEsl ol LALLM
. o e 14 14 1214 _n3-14

af mpenineg podl chusing aluoee of presenn vabice of e obligatisn ©

Pvaennval ‘~1Eﬁ;|:gu|m| s 81 thee Degeniigng ol (e yem 24,72 ] ER L) 1
Unberest o I B3 BT 0.25 a4
T irrent Sprviee sl 148 435 asi EN I
henztirs jrand {2.28) (L] A L Al
Sl () hise an olilagmiions {1 hlbg {07 TR i35
1% darni & uh_.-.;-_o_l';ﬂcﬂ.gyn ut the gnd o ihe venr 1545 rE oy %35 4
A rovancilimtion of spening sod dosimg laal il the Hrvjhﬂpﬂm.
Faun vadnetod jplan wesets a8 hawimmong off the year 44 56 4340 .48 442
Actmal et ol plin dasits 1w 554 1534 bz
Pl contlrdtiitam - 1,5 42 LK 1.1
Pzt paid 1328 1T {42} [Bdey
ot ol peininn " lismsd oo b Paptionirs 043 4. 45) Hka3) .15y
T wailuw 1F e misevs o the-end of vear 51,00 44,50 A &80
At Commprehensive Income
Sutbunital g i losses arivg diosn chinpes modesaprophic sssmsom = = & =
Setmrdnl pams aned lovses mosme froen chanpss in flnoncial ssnptions 050 {25 [ERE] [l may
Heineassemiunl (Cinni | Loss dbiseng, from Exprrence Adpusimend | L. #og LA 2 i AE) (153
s in dhe effecr i laniing § nes detbned lenclih asset wo il et cellmge, excludmg smeuns
(ISR LTI = N 1Ry 455 iy {153
Lt tal Betnin | Lass depprnisnd b 10T — {4,132y 1ie (2.94) {2.ai
Mie bir b prvwgnired bn Stambabons Statement ol Assoty and Linhilities ;
Fragytn il 0 islibpanon s the ond of the venr 2548 un ¥ 24n
Fani waliig ol dscadts, o il ghie end ol the yenr 3l 44 S 4.0 o459
St ! [lishibiy' | recegmized in Sanndalens Halaece Shos {26.55) (1054} | 1 45} (118
A apemses reengniseil in Samadalone Statement of prfic sl loss @
L e ey gl 240 433 193 30
Lkt £l 41 i) {305 i, 0 [LNRNT5Y
Eapemes reeagnined in the Staedalone Statenient of prisin and s 102 131 ] 108

Sereativ ity nnumlysas i ghe dfefimed enefin olslizommen
bl ermsal Assumpeices for e detemiiation of the defimed bonefit olifunion ene disco oie, eypmected sliny meresse amd empbayes e The senstivity mlysis heli, bive been
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